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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

NOTICE 

Notice is hereby ~iven that the 29fh Annual General Meeting ·of the Shareholders of the company will be held on 
Thursday, the 30 day of September, 2021 at 12:00 Hrs. at the Registered Office of the Company at 9111

, KM 
Stone, Hisar Bhf.Nani Road. VPO Dabfa, Hisar to transact the following business-

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021 and the Profrt & loss 
Account lor the year ended on that date together with the Reports of Auditors' and Directors' thereon. 

2. To appoint a director In place of Mr. Nlkhll Goel (DIN 01741446), Director who retires by rotation and Is eligible 
lor re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without moditication(s). the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:· 

.. Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 and aU other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
COmpanies Act, 2013 {including any statutory modifiCation !hereto from time to time or any re-enactment thereof for 
the·time being in force) r8ad with Companies (Appoiiltment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, Sdledule V prescribed under the Ad and Artides of AssociaUon of the Company and also subjed to the 
approval of such othet authorllies as may be required. Mr. Anurag Gupta, Managing Director (DIN No. 00192888), 
be paid a remuneration'of Rs. 2,25,000/· per month, w.e.f. April 01, 2021 to the remainder of his tetm i.e. up to 
December 26, 2021, as per details givoo below: 

Salary 

PerQuisites 

HRA 
Special Allowance 

: Rs. 1 ,35,0001· per month 

: Rs. 67,500/·;per month. 
: Rs. 22,5001· per month 

Further, ·Resolved that the other terms and conditions of his appolntment shaft remain the same: 

4. To considet' and if thought fh to pass, with 01 without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:. 

"Resolved that purwant to lhe provisions of Sections 197 and an other applicable provisions, If any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification thereto from time to time or any re-enactment thereof for 
the time being in force) read with Companies (Appointment end Remuneration of Managefial PersOnnel) Rules. 
2014, Schedule V presaibed under lhe Act and Articles of Association of the Company and also subject to the 
approval of such other authorities as may be required, Mrs. Sapna Kansal, Whole nrne Director (DIN No. 
06892410) be paid a remuneration of Rs. 2,250001-, per month, w.e.f. April 01, 2021 to the remainder of her tenn 
i.e. up to December 13, 2022, as per details given below: 

SalarY 

Perquisites 

HRA 
Special Allowance 

: Rs. 1,35,0001- per month 

Category-A 

: Rs. 67,5001-·per month. 
: Rs. 22,500/· per month 

Further, "Resolved that the other tenns and conditions of hoer appointment shall remaui the same." 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

5. To consider and if thought fit to pass. with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:-

"'Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197. 203 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act. 2013 (induding any statutory modification thereto from time to lime or any re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Schedule V presCribed under the Act and also subject to the approval of such other 
authOrities as may be required, Mr. Anurag Gupta, Managing Director (DIN No. 00192888), be and is hereby re­
appointed as the Managing Director of the company rar a tenure of 3 years commencing )V.e.f. December 29. 
2021 at a remuneration of Rs. 2,25000/-, per month, as stated below. 

Salary 

Perquisites 

HRA 
Special AUowance 

Rs. 1,35,000/- per month 

Category-A 

: Rs. 67 ,500/· per month. 
: Rs. 22.500/· per month 

CategOI')'·B 

Car • He man be provided with the .company's car with driver for performing his' Omcial duties. Use of 
Company's car for his private purpose shall be billed by company to his account. 

. Telephone • He shall be provld~ with Company's telephone at" his residenc8. and tha! aa long distance 
penonal calls shall be billed by company 10 his account • · 

6. To c::onslder and If thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s). the following resolution as .a Special --=· · "Resdved that pur$uant to the provisions of Section- 149, 152 read with Schedule IV. and aD other appt;cab'e 
• provialons, if any, of the companies Ad., 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re • enactment thereof, for the lime being tn force and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations end Dlsdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr.· Mlthlesh Kumac Gupta 
(DIN 07692870). be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non Executiv8 Independent Olrecicir of the company 10 
hOld omce for fJYO tonseCU'Ifw years w.e.f. December 29, 2021, not liable to retire by rotation: 

·Further, Reaotved that Mr. Mithlesh' Kumar Gupta (DIN 07692870) shell continue to hold ihe otnce of Non 
. ExecutNe Independent Director of the company even if h8 completes 75 ~ars of. age on September 12, 2024. 

· 7. To conskSor and If thought fit to pass. with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Retolutlon:· 

:. "Resotved that pursuant to the provisions of Section .149, 152 read with Schedule IV an4 aa other appUcable 
·.-provisions, if any, of the conipanles Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and QualifiCation of Directors) 

Rules, 2014 Including any statutory modiricalion(s) or re ~ enactment theraof, for the time being In force and 
SEBI (tlstlng Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg (DIN 
07692820), be and ts hereby re-appointed as a Non ExeC\JUve Independent Director of the company to hold 
ofTice for fJYe consecutive years w.e.f. December 29. 202~, not liable to retire by rotation." 

,Further, ResOlved that Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg (DIN 07692820) shal\ continue to hOld the omce of Non 
: E~ecuUve Independent Director of the company even If he completes 75 years of age on December 04, 2025. 

8: To consider and if thought flt to pass. with or without modlflcntlon(s), the follow'lng resolution as a Special ..........,,. 
"Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedute IV and al other applicable 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

provisions, if any, of the companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Oualif!Catlon of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 induding any statutory modifiC8tion(s) or .re • enactment thereof. for the time being in force and 
SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015, Mr. Sandeep Suri (DIN 07693480), 
be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non Executive Independent Director of the company to hold office for five 
consecutive years w.e.f. December 29. 2021, not liable to retire by rotation: 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 06.09.2021 
Regd. Office: 
9110

, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwanl Road, VPO Debra, Hisar 

NOTES: 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Sdi-
(Anurag Gupta ) 
Managing Director 

1. The Explanatory Statement punwanl to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 Is annexed. 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of the company. The Instrument of proxy, In order 
to be effective, should be deposited at the registered ol'fice of the company, duty compktted and signed. not less 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. Proxies ·submitted on behalf of Limited Companies or 
societies etc. must be supported by appropriate resotutionStauthority, as applicable. 

3. Corporate /Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRJ, etc.) shall send certified true copy of 
the Board Resolution I Authority letter, etc., together with &nested specimen slgnature(s) of the duly authorized 
representative(s), to the Company, to attend the AGM. 

4. Pursuant to the provisions ot Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of Members and Share 
Transfer Books of the CompanY shall remain dosed from Saturday, September 25, 2021 to ThUtSday, 
September 30, 2021 (both days lnduslve). 

5. In case of joint hold~ attending the Meeting, the joint holder ~ ls higher In order of names under a given 
FolioiDPID-Ciient (in respect of dematerialized shares) will be entiUed to vote. 

6. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copy of this Notice aJong with dully filled admission slip in 
accordance with their specimen signature(s) registered with the Company, for attending the meeting. Members 
who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client 10 and DP ID numbers for 
identifJCation. 

7. As required under SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, details in 
respect of director(s) see~ing reappointment at the AGM, fonns an integral part of the notice. Requisite 
dedarations/oonsent have been received from the Dlredor(s) seeking reappointment as per provisions of 
Coinpanies Act, 2013 including rules framed there under. Further, a brief resume of each of the diredon; 
proposed to be appointed/re-appointed at this AGM, nature of their expertise in specific function areas, name of 
companies In which they hokl directorship and membership /chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholdlng 
and relatlonship between directors Inter seas stipulated under Regulation 36 of the.SEBI (listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other requisite Information as per Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial 
Standard-2 on General Meetings are provided as an Annexure to thiS notice: 

B. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify their «Hnau ld & change in address, if any, to 
the Company at its Registered Office or to tho Registrar & Transfer Agents· M/s Indus Portfolio Private limited, 
G-65, Bali Nagar, New Oelhi-110015. Furtnef, they are requested to convert their shafes Into dematerialized form 
in their own interest and eotl\lenlence. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

9. Members holding shares in electronic fonn are requested to notify change in their e-mail id & address, if any, 
to their Depository Participant. 

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submissiorl of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant In securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they _are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company. 

11. Electronic copy of the Notice of general meeting of .the company is being sent to all the memberS whose 
email Ids are registered with the company/Depository Partlclpant(s) for communication purposes. For members 
who have not registered their email address, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode. 

12. Members desiring any information, as regards accounts & operations, are requested to write to ihe Company 
at its Registered Office at least ten days before the date of Annual General Meeting so as to enable to keep the 
Information ready. 

13. SEBI vide Nour~cation no. SEBlll..AD/-NRO/GN/2016124, dated OSth June, 2018 and further amendment vide 
notification no. SEBlllAD/-NRO/GN/2018149, dated 30th November. 2018, have presclibed that except in case 
of transmission 0t transposition or securities, reQuests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed 
unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholden are 
requested to take action to dematerialize the equity shares of the Company promptly. 

14. As a measure of economy; copies of Annual Report shall not be distributed at the venue of the AGM. 
Members are therefOte requested to bring their own copies of the Annual Report to the meeting. 

15. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AGM is annexed. 

16. Mls Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Ball Nagar, New Oelhi-110015. are Registrars & Share Transfer 
Agents of the Company. The Shareholders can con~ct them fOt dematerialization, transmissions, 
communications fOt change of address. Issue of duplicate shares. etc. directly. · 

I. Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of Ule Companies Act, 2013 read with· Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Listing Agreement With Stock Exchanges, the Company is 
pleased to offer a-voting facc1ity to the members to cast lheir votes electronica.lty on all resolu~s set forth in the 
Notice convening Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 12:00 Hrs. at the 
registered otoce of the company at 9w.. KM Stone, Hlsar Bhlwani Road, VPO o·abra. Hlsar. The Company has 
engaged the services of COSL to provide the a-voting facility. 

II. The tadlity for voting through Poning Paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending 
the meeting who have not cast lhelr vote by remote e-voting shaD be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through Polling Paper. 

Ill. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-votlng prior to lhe AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast thelr vote again. 

lV. The remote a-voting period shall commence on September 27, 2021 at 9:00A.M. (1ST) and shan end on 
September 29, 2021 at 5:00. P.M. (1ST) During thiS period, members' of the Company holding shares either in 
physical form or in demate_rialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 23, 2021, rl)&y cast their vote by 
remote e-votlng. The remote e-votlng module shall be disabled by M/s Indus Portfolio Private limited for voting 
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. 

The process and manner for Remote e-votlng are as hereunder: 

Remote a-Voting Instructions for shareholders p"ost change In the Login mechanism for Individual 
shareholders holding securities In demet mode, pur$uant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2D2D: 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Votlng facility provided _by Usted Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintair.ed with 
Depositories and Depository Participants only post September 07, 2021. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and emallld In their demat accounts to access a-Voting 
facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securiti-es in demat mode/ physical mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat rryode with 
CDSL. 

Individual Shareholders (holding securities 
in demat mode) & login through their 
depository participants 

lnstUutJof!al shareholders: 

login Method 

• Existing user of who have Opted for Easi 1 Easiest. they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach a-Voting page without any further authentic­
cation. The URL for users to login to Easl/ Easiest ere 
https:/lweb.cdsllndla cOmtmyeasl/bomel!ogln or 
w.vw.cdslindla.com and dick on New System Myeasi. 

• After successful login of Easi I Easiest the user will be also 
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e.. 
Voting service provider i.e. DSL. Click on a-Voting service 
provider name to cast your 110te. 
• If the user Is nol registered for Easi/Easlest. option to register 

is avaDable at 
https:/tweb.g:lsllnd!a comJmyeas!JResz!strnt!on/EasiRoofs!rntlon 

• Altemaitvely, the user can directly access e-Votlng page by 
Providing demel Account Number and PAN No. from a link In 
Www.cdslindla.corn home page. The system win authenticate 
the user by sending OTP on regl$tered Mobile & Email as 
recorded In the demat Account Mer successful authentication, 
user wiU be provided links for the respective ESP where the E 
Voting is in progress. 

• You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account throwh your Depoaftory Partldpant registered with 
CDSL for e-votlng fadllly. 

• Once login, you will be able to see a--Voting optlon. Onoe ycu 
dick on a-Voting option, you ~ be redirected to COSL 
Depository site after successful authentlcadon, wherein you can 
see a-Voting feature .. Click on oompany name or a-Voting 
servtce provider ·name and you will be rodirocled to e.Votlng 
service provider website for cast1rc1 your voto durfng the remote 
e-Votlitg period & voting durtng the moetlng . 

. • 

Institutional sharehoklers (I.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Ct.rstodlans era required tO Sog on the e· 
110ting system of COSL at helpdesk.evoting@cdsllndla.corn and register thsmselvei a 'QI$t0dlan J M':ffiJal Fund 
1 Corporate Body'. They are also required to upload e scanned ~ed true copy of the"boan:l resolution 
/authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested spedmen signature of thi duly authorised 
representatlve(s) In PDF format In the 'Custodian I Mutual Fund J Corporate Body' login for the ScruUnlzer to 
verify the same. •· 

Individual Shareholders holding 11tcurttlnln demat mode with CDSL hive rat:; Uen tho password: 

5 



r 

\ 

I 
L 
• 

I 

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

·shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User 101 Password ar& advised to use Forget User tO. and 
Forget Password option available ai 3bove mentioned dePository/ depository partidpants website .. 

:. it is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. · 

:.. For sharehOlders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 
resolutions contained in lhis Notice. 

:. During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login ariy number of time till they haw voted on the 
resolution(s) for a particular "Event". 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities In demat mode: 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode·have any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL, they may contact the helpdesk given below: 

Login type 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demet mode 

Helpdesk details 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
hetpdesk by sending .a request at hetpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or contact at 022· 23058738 or 22·23058542-43. 

• Aily person, who acquires shares of the Company and become merriber of the Company after dispatch of the 
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date I.e. September 23, 2021, may obtain the login ID and password 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdsllndia.com 

·The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share caJ)itat of the 
Company as on the cut-off date i.e. September 23, 2021. 

• Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Goel, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-2107) has been appointed as 
the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the remote e-voting process including polllng papers in lair and transparent manner. 

·The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblOck the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than two days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated scrutinizer's repOrt of the total votes cast in favour Of against. if any. to the Chairman. Thereafter, 
the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing shalt declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

• Tho Results declared alOng with the report of the Scrutinizer Shan· be placed on the website of the Company 
i.e.www.hisarspinnlngmnts.com immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately fo1warded to the BSE limited, Mumbai. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

hem No.2 

A brief profile of the Non Executive Director. 

Mr. Nikhil Goel (Din: 01741446) who Is retiring by rotation, Is eligible for appointment 

Age: 40 years as on 31.03.2021. 

Ou8tification: Graduate. 

Experience: Has been 8ssoQated as director of a manufacturing company. He has rich experlenco of 
manufacturing & finandng activities. 

Terms and conditions of appointment or re-appointment along with details of remuneration sought to be paid: 
Appointed as an additional director w.e.f. December 29, 2016, then appointed a director liable to retire by 
rotation in the annual general meeting held on September 28, 2017. He was again re- appointed a dlredor liable 
to retire by rotation in the annual general meeting held on September 30, 2019. He shall now retire by rotation at 
the forthcoming AGM and is eUglble for re-appointment. No remuneration Is proposed to be paid to him. 

Remuneration last drawn by such person: Nil 

Date of first appointment on the Board: 29.12.2016 

Sharehokling in the company: 160400 Equity Shares. 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel of the company: No 
relationship. 

Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year. 7 

Other Directorships: Two 
Membership/ Chalnnanship of Committees of other Boards: Nil 

Nature of interest of Directors; None of the Directors except Mr. Nikhil Goel himself, is interested In the proposed 
resolutiOn. 

bemNo.l&S 

A brief profile of Mr. Anurag Gupta, Managing Director. 

Mr. Anurag Gupta was appointed as Managing Director of the· Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 
197 and an other applicable provisions. If any, of the Companies Act,. 2013 (inc;ludlng any statutory modlflcatlon 
thereto from time to time or any re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014, Schedule V prescribed under the Act 
and Artides of Association of the Company and also subject to :he approval of such other authorities as may be 
required, for a period of five years w.e.f. December 29. 2016. His remuneration was subsequently enhancod 
w.e.f. December 14, 2017 on the tenns & conditions approved in the Annual General Meeting held on September 
29,2018. His remuneration was further enhanced w.e.f. April 01,2021 on the terms & conditions contalned in the 
proposed resolution. Further, since his tenn shaU be coming to an end on December 28, 2021, the board of 
directors recommend his re-appointment for a further period of three years w.e.f. December 29. 2021. The 
proposed resolutions are to pay remuneration for the remaining tenn.l.e. from April 01, 2021 to Oeeember 28, 
2021 and also to re-appoint him for a further period of three years w.e.f. December 29, 2021 provided In the 
notice above. 

Age: 51 years as on 31.03.2021 
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Qualification: Bachelor of Engineering . . ·-~-l · ... ~ ... Experience: Has been associated as director of the company. He has wide experience of manufacture of yam & 
J financing activities. 

£ Terms and conditions _of appointment or re-appointment along with details of remuneration sought to be paid: 
Appointed as Managing Director, for five years w.e.f. December 29, 2016 at a remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- per 
month enhanced toRs. 1,25,000/- per month w.e.l. December 14,2017. Further enhanced toRs. 2,25.0001- per 
month w.e.f. April 01, 2021 
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Remuneration last draiNn by such person: Rs. 1,25,000/- p.m·. from December 14,2017. 

Date of first appointment on the Board: 28.02.2000. 

Shareholding in the company: 184250 Equity Shares. 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel of the company: No 
relationship. 

Number of Meetings of the Board anended during the year: 7 

Other Directorshi~: One 

Member'&hipl Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards: One 

Nature of Interest of Directors: None of the Directors except Mr. Anurag Gupta himself, Is Interested ln the 
proposed r8$0Mion. . 

Rem No.1 

A brtef profiLe of M,... Sapna Kansal, Executive Director: 

Mrs. Sapna Kansal was appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company purnuant to the ~ of SecUon 
197 tv~d an other applicable ·provisions, H any, of the Companies Ad, 2.013 (indudlng any statutory modification 
thereto from tWne to time' or any re-enactment thereof fof the tlme being in force) read with Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Schedule V presaibed under tho Ad 

·and Artk::les of Auociation of the Company al\d also subject to the approval of such other 'authorities as may be 
required, for a period of fJVO years w.e.f. December 14, 2017.· Her remuneration was enhanced w.e.f. April 01, 
2021 to December 13, 2022 on the terms & conditions contained in the proposed resolution. · 

Age: 48 yearn as on 31.03.2021. 

Oualiflcatkln: Graduate 

Experience: Around 15 years experienCe In family bu~ness. 
Terms and condiUons of appointment or re-appointment along with details of remuneration sought to be paid: 

Appointed as Whole Tame director for fTYe years w.e.f. December 14, 2017 on the terms & conditions approved in 

the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2018. The proposed reS?lution is to pay remuneration for 

the rel'!'alning term i.e:from Apcil 01,2021 to December 13,2022 provided In the OOUce above. 

Remuneration last drawn by such person: Rs. 1,25,000/- p.m. from December 14,2017. 

Oa.te of first appointment on the Board: 20.06.2014 

Shareholding in the company: 63,100 shares. 

. Relationship with other Directors, Manager al\d othCr Key Managerial Personnel of the company: No relationship 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

with other directors. However, spouse of Mr. Naveen Kansal, Chief Executive Officer. 

Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year: 7 

Other Directorships: Nil 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Comriitttees of other Boards: Nil 

Nature of interest of Directors: None of the Directors except Mrs. Sapna Kansal herself, 1$ Interested in the 

proposed resolution. 

hem No.6 

A brief profile of the Independent Director. 

Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta (Din: 07692870) is a Non Executive Independent Director on the board of the 
company since December 29, 2016. His term shalt come· to an end on Decembef 28, 2021 and is eligible for 
appointment. 

Age: 71-years as on 31.03.2021 

Oua!ification: Graduate from Indian Institute of Technology. 

Experience: Over 50 years wide experience in the fiek:l of civil engineering. Presendy, he is running his own 
company and has rich experieltce In engineering & _financial activities. 

Tenns .and conditions of appointment or re...appotntment along Mlh details ot remuneration eought to bo pakl: 
Appointed as an independent director for five years w.e.f. December 29, 2016. He shall further be re-appointed 
for fiVG years w.e.f. December 29, 2021. Only sitting f&n are being paid /shan be paid fot attending bOard & 
committee meetings. 

Remuneration last drawn by sud1 person: Nil 

Date ottlrst appointment on the Board: 29.12.2016 

Sharehokllng In the company. Nil 

Relationship INiln other Directors, M&nagef and other Key Managerial t='er.onnel of the company: No 
relationship. 

Number of Meetings of the Board attend_ed during the year: 7 

Other DitectOf'Ships: Nil 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards: Nil 

ttem No. l 

A brief profUe .~f the lndepeni::lent Director: 

Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg (Din: 07692820) 13 a Non Executive Independent Director on the board of the company 
since December 29, 2016. His tenn shall come lOan end on December 28, 2021 and Is eligible for appointment. 

Age: 70 years as on 31.03.2021 

Oualiflcatlon: B.A. (Hons), Post Graduate, M. PhU & Ph. D. 

·experienci!J: Over 45 years' experience in education line. Presently, active in the field at management ot 
academic institutions. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

Terms and conditions of appointment or re-appointment along with details of remuneration sought to be paid: 
Appointed as an independent director for frve years w.e.f. December 29, 2016. He shall further be re-appointed 
for five years w.e.f. December .29, 2021. Only sitting fees are being paid I shall be paid fOf attending board & 
committee meetings. 

Remuneration last drawn by such person: Nil 

Date of first appointment on the Board: 29.12.2016 

Shareholdlng In the company: Nil 

Relationship with other Olredors. Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel of the company: No 
relationship. · 

Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year. 7 

Other Directorships: Nil 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Commlttaes of other Boards: Nil 

nero No o 

A brtef profile of the Independent Director. 

Mt. Sandeep Suri (Din: 07693480) Is a Non Executive Independent Difector on the board of the oompany since 
December 29, 2016. His term shall come to an end on December 28, 2021 and is eligible for appointment 

Age: 51 years as on 31.03.2021 

Qualification: law Gradu8te. 

Experience: A leading Advocate Pfactlclng In Supreme Court -~ High Courts. He is on the panel of various 
companies induding Banks, which inter ella deal with manufacturing & financing actMtlc&. • . 

Tenns and conditions of appointment or re-appointment along. with details of remuneration sought to be paid: 
Appointed as an independent director for five years w.a.f. December 29, 2016. He shall further be re-appointed 
for ftve years w.e.f. December 29, 2021. Only sitting fees are being paid I shall be paid for attending board & 
cornmiUee meetings. · 

Remuneration last drawn by sLICh person: Nil 

Date of first appointment on the Board: 29.12.2016 

Shnteholdlng In the company: Nll 

Rellltionshlp with other Directors, Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel of the company: No 
reLationship. 

Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year: 7 

Other Dlrectonohlps: Nil 

Membership/ Chalnnanship of C<Xnmlttees of other BoardS: Nn·· 

?\ace: Chandlgarh 
Date: 06.09.2021 
9., KM Stone Hiser Bhiwanl Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar 
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HISAR SPINNING MilLS UMITED 

Fonn no. MGT-11 
Proxy FOnn 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 201-3 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN 
Name of the Company 
Registered office 

L 17112HR1992PLC031621 
Hlsar Spinning Mills Limited • 
9111

, KM Slone, Hlsar Bhiwanl Road, VPO Dabra, Hlsar 

IJ We, beinQ the member (s) of .......••...... Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

Name: 
Address: 
EmaiiiD: . . 

. Signature: ........................................ , or failing him 
·Name: 

Address: 
Email tO: 
Signature: ....................................... ,or falling him 
Name: 
Address: 
EmaiiiD: 
Signature: ................. , ....... : ............. . 

as myf our proxy to anend and vote (on a polt) for mel us and on myl our behalf at the Annual General Meetng 
of the Company, to be he'd on Thursday. September 30, 2021 at 12:00 Hrs. 'at e-', KM SlOne, Hisar Bhlwanl 
Road. VPO Oabra, Hlsar and at any ad}oumment thereof In respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

S.NO. RESOLUTlONS 

Consider and adopt tt-.8 Audited Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of Dlreclon and Auditors 

2 Re- appointment or Mr. Nikhil Goel, retiring by rotation at the AGM. 

3 Payment of remuneration to Mf. AnUrag Gupta .. 

4 Payment of remuneration to Mrs. Sapna Kansal. 

5 Re-appointment of Mr. Anurag Gupta as Managing Director for ttvee years. 

-6 -----·R;:.~·ppointment of Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Singla as a Non Executive Independent Director for riW years. I 
7 Re-appointment of Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg as a Non Executive Independent Director for five years 

8 , Re-ap~nlment of Mr. Sandeep Suri as a Non Exerutive Independent Director for riW years 

Signed this ........... day of September. 2021 

Signature ofBhareholder: 

Signature of Proxy Holder (s): 

NOte: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement or tho MeeUI"'Q. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Folio No. 
No. of share(s) held 

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 
Registered Office: 9"', KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani 

Road, VPO Debra, Hisar-125005 
Tel: 01662-260397, Tei/Fex:-91-1662-260397 

E-mail: hsml2000@rediffmail.com 
Website: www.hisarspinningmins.com 

CIN: l17112HR1992PLC031621 

ATIENOA.NCE SLIP 

Attendance Slip for 29.,. Annual General Meeting 
(to be handed over at the Registration Counter) 

DP ID -~=====:-Client 10: 

Full Name of the member I proxy attending the meeting 

(First Name) (Second Name) (Surname) 

liNe hereby record my/our presence at the 29" Annual General Meeting of the company at 9", KM Stone, Hisar 
Bhiwanl Road, VPO Oabra, Hisar on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at12:00 Hrs. 

Signature of the Member/Proxy present 

Note: The practice of distributing copies of the Annual Report at the Annual GEin~ Meeting has been 
discontinued. Hence, persons attending the Meeting are requested to bring their ~s of the Annual Report 
-them. 

Dear Sir, 

PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTANOACE SLIP AT THE MEETING. 

·Registered OffiCO: 9 .. , KM Stone, Hlsar Bhlwanl 
Road, VPO Oabra, Hisar-125005 
Tel: 01662-260397, T ei/Fex:-91-1662-260397 
Website: www hlsarsDinningmills.com 
CIN: L 17112HR1992PLC031621 

Pursuant to·pmvisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
. (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the company is pleased to provide remote e-voting facility to the members lo cast their votes 
electronically 011 all the resolutionS set forth .in the Notice convening the 29 .. Annual General Meeting to be held 
on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 12:00 Hrs. The company has engaged the Central Depository Services 
Limited (COSL) to provide the remote e-voting facility: 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Your eledronlc voting particulars are set out below: 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

EVEN User 10 Password 
{Electronic Voting Event 

Number)-

2108236(2 

The remote e-voting facility will be available during Ute voting period as indicate herein below: 

Commencement of remote a-voting period End of remo~e e-votlng period 

From 9.00 A.M. 1ST on Monda , tember 27.2021 TUI 5.00 P.M. 1ST on Wednesda tember 29 2021 

Notes: 
1. Please read the instructions printed overleaf before exercising your vote. 
2. These details and instructions form an integral pan o-f the Notice for the 29*" Annual General Meeting to be 
held on September 30, 2021. · · . 
3. The voting rights of the membef'S shall be in proportion to the paid up value of their Shares in the equity share 
capital ot the Company as on cut-off date of Thursday, September 23, 2021, being the record date for the 
purpose of voting. 

ROUTE MAP TO HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Director's Report 

Dear Shareholders. 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 29., Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of 
the Compa_ny for the f~nancial year ended March 31, 2021. 

~--~~-------------------------------r~--~~-(~.~~•~1 
; Financial Highlights Year ended Year ended 

' 

I Totallncoma 

! Profit before Financial Cost. Oepreclatloo end Tax 
1 Finance cost 

! Profit before Depreciation and Tax 

I Depreciation 

I Profit before tax 

:less: Tax Expenses 

I ..current tax 

:-Adjustment of tax relating to 8811ier periods 

1-Def"""' tax 

I Proftt after tax 

I Other Compnhanstva Income 

lllems that will not be redasslfled to profit oc kiss: 

i Remeasurements ~ the deAned benefit plans 

i Income tax relating to items that wiD not be reclassified to profit or loss 

:Total Other Comprehenstv. tncomel (·) Expense 

i Total Comprehensive lnconM for the year 

'I Earnings per equlty shaN: 
(Nominal vatue of equity share-Rs. 101·) 

I eas1c (Rs. 1 
jDMed (Rs.) 

OPERATIONAL & PERFORMANCE REVlEW 

'· ' I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

31.03.2021 
' 2912.34, . ' 

291.67' 

8.49) 

283.1Bi. 

78.22 

204.96 

33.66 

-5.14 

29.23 1 

U7.21! 

-2.501 
' 0.631 

-1.871 

145.341 

I 
I 

3.941 

3.941. 

31.03.2020 

3163.81 

405.14 

22.03 

383.11 

105.75 

277.36 

74.63 

1.70 

2.98 

198.05 

0.92 

-0.26 .... 
191.71 

5.30 

5.30 

During the year under review, the gross receipts of your Company were Rs. 2912.34 Lakhs as against gross receipts of 
Rs. 3163.81 Lakhs during the previous year and profit (after tax) was Rs. 147.21 Lakhs fOf the year as against net profit 
(after tax) of Rs.198.05 Lakhs during previous year. 

On account of COVlD-19 pandemic, the Government of llidia had imposed a complete natlon-'Nide lockdown on March 
24, 2020 leading to temporarily shut down of Company's manufacturing fadlities and operations for some period during 
first quarter. Though, lhe Government of India progressively relaxed lockdown conditions and had anowed industry to 
resume its operations, bi.Jt it had ImpaCted the perforrilanco of the company for lhe current year. 

DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted·Or renewed any deposit from lhe public during the year under review pursuant to the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thOre under. 
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TRANSFER TO RE.sERVES . 

The Board of Directors_ ha~ d~ed to retain the entil'e amount of profits for FY 2020-21 in the Retained Earnings. 

DMDEND 

With a view to conServe resources of the company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend fOf the year under 
review. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There was no change In the nature Of business. 

STATEMENT ON SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

Your company does not have any &ubsidiary I associate I joint ventures within the msanlng. of Companies Act, 2013 
and Accounting Standards. 

DIRECTORS 

In occordance with the provisions of the Companies Ad., 2013 and the A.r6des of Association of Company, Mr. Nikhil 
Goet, (DIN: 01741446) Director," shall retire by rotation at the forthc::ornlng Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

. . . 
Further. all the Independent directors namely Mr. Milhlesh Kumar Gupta (DIN 07692870), Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garv 
(DIN 07692820) and Mr. Sandeep Suri (DIN 07693480) shall be completing their rtve year term on December 28, 2021. 
Your directors, on the proposal of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, reoorrrnend their re-appointment for a 
further period of frve years w.e.f. December 29, 2021, subjad to approval of lhareholders by &pedal resolution at the 
annual general meeting. 

Mr. Anurag Gupta, Managing Director (DIN No. 00192888), shal 81so be comPetng his frve year term on December 
28, 2021. YotK directors, on the proposal of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, recommend his re-appointment 
lex a further period of 3 years commencing w.e.f. December 29, 2021. 

At.onMardl31, 2021 folowing were the K!!~Y~ Personnel of Company: 

Mr. Anurag Gupta 
Mrs. Sapna Kensal 

• Mr. Naveen Kansal 
Mr. Sharad Gael 
Mrs. Nikita Singla 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Managing Director 
Executive Director 
Chief Executive Oft"ICer 
Chief Financial Oft"ICer 
Company Secretary and Compliance Oft"ICIIf 

At the 25"' Annual General Meeting of Company held on Se-ptember 28,2017, Mls Romesh K Aggarwal & AssociateS, 
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as StaMory Auditors of the Company, lex a period d rive years I.e. from the 
conduslon of 25"' Annual ~ral Meeting of Company till the cooduslon of 3(/' Annual General Meeting of Company 
to be held In the year 2022, In acconiance with the provisions of section 139 of Companies Ad, 2013 read with 
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules. 2014. 

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Observations, if any, made In the Auditor's Report are self explanatory and do not cal any explanation. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

fAr. Senjiv Kumar Gael, Practk:lng Company Secretary has been appointed by lha Board to conduct Seaetarial Audit 
under provisions of section 204 oflha Companies Ad 2013. Tho Secretarial Audit report is annexed with the Director's 
Report as AnnnuN -1. Thera is no qualifiC8tion In secretarial audit report. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

Energy conseM!tlon continues to be an area of major emphasis in your Company. Efforts are made to optimize the 
energy cost while carrying out manufacturing operations. As required by the provisions of section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the relevant information regarding ConseJValion of Energy, Technology Absorption and Forei9n Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo is given in the Annexure- 2 forming part of this report. 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of lhe Companies !v::t 2013. 
The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies Ad. 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 rhereinafter referred to as Listing Regulations"). 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company is committed to maintain the good standards of Corporll\e Governance. The Company has complied with 
the Corporate Governance reQuirements a~ stipulated under Listing Regulations. Pursuant to said Regulations, Report 
on CorlXlrnte Governance together with the Certificate issued by Practici'lg Company Secretary regarding compliance 
of Corporate Governance Is annexed to this report. 

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to tho provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,' 2013: it is hereby confirmed that: 

(a) in the preparation of annualsccoonts fOf the financial year ended Marc:h 31, 2021. the apPlicable BCCOUnting 
atan<Sards have been followed and that there are no material departures: 

(b) the Olrectm have selected such accounting poljdes and applied .them consistently a.id made judgements and 
estimates that Vt'el'e reasonable and prudent so as to give- a true and fair view of the state oi aiiai~ ~~ ~ 
Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Compa_ny for the year ended on that elate: 

(e) the Oiredors ~ve taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records In 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets ci, the ~ and .for 
preventing and deteding fraud and other irregularities: 

(d} the annual accounts have been preJ)ared on a going concern baSis; 
(e} the Directors have laid down internal fmnciat controls to be-foDowed by the compa,Y 811d that such internal 

finandal controls are adequate and are operating effectively. . 
(f} the Directors have devised proper systems to en.sure complianc:c with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that su<:h systems are adequatety and operatin.g effectively. 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS uls 143(12) 

Your company has complied with an the provisions of Section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013. Hence, there are no 
frauds ~ed by the Auditors other than those which are reportable to the Central Government. Further, no fraud has 
been reported to the Central Government 

EXTRACT QF ANNUAL RETURN 

The requirement of attaching extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 has been dispensed with by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2011 effectiv.e from July 31, 2016. As per reql.!lremcnts, annual return (Form MGT-7) for the year 
2019-20 has been placed on the website of the company, at Vt'W'Whisarsp!nninqmills.com. Annual Rolum (Form MGT-
7} for the year 2020.21 shall ?lso be pla~ed on the company's website in due course. 

· NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

During the financial year 2020-21, seven Board meetings were held. The meetings were held on May 30, 2020, July 31. 
2020, September 04, 2020, September 15,2020, October-14, 2020, NOV$Tiber 11,2020 and February 12. 2021. The 
other relevant details of Board meetingS and the attendance of the Directors etc. is given under C01'p01'8te Governance 
Report aMexed with Dlredor's Report. · 
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

All Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the Declaration of Independence, as required p~J~SUanl to 
section 149(7) of -the Companies Act 2013 and under UsUng RegulaUons, staUng that they meet the alteril! of· 
independence as provided in sub-section (6). 

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARAH"fEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

No loans. guarantees or inv9stmeniS under Section 186 ollhe Companies Act. 2013 have been given by the Company. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions that were entered Into during the r~n&ncial year wece In the ordinary course of business 
and were at arm's length basis. No Materially significant related party transactions have been entered by the Company 
with Promo~. Oirectcn or Key Managerial Personnel etc. that had potential conffict with the Interest of the Company 
at large. All Related Party Transactlofls are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for approval. Prior 
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on year1y basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen and 
repetitive nature. The detail at tnmsactiOns entered Into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted Is placed before 
the Aud'rt Committee and the Board of Directors on a quarter1y basis. None of the Directors has any pecuniary 
relaUonships Of transactions vis-a-vis the company. The details of the same are given In Form AOC-2 and Is annexed 
herewith. 

OlSCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBmON 
AHD REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has In place an Antt-SeXual Harassment Policy In line wtth the requirements of Sexuat Harassment of 
Wcmen at Workplace (PreYentlon, Prohibition and Redressal) Ad, 2013. M Internal Compleilta Committee (ICC) hat 
been set up to ntdreSI comptalnts rec:eiYed regarding sexual hanlssment. ·AD empklyeea (pennanent contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are COYered under tNs poBcy. The said potlcy b uploaded on the Company's website 
www.hlsar&pinnlngmiltl.com. 

The tolkmll~g Is a surntn.-yofaexual hlnssmenl complaints receiYed and dilposedotfdlri1g there- 2020-21: 
a) No. c1 Complahts rec:efved In the ~ NIL . 
b) No. ol complaints dispond otf c:k.ring the yoar:'Nil 
c) No. ol cases pending tor more lhan 90 days: NIL 
d) No. ofworQ.hops or awaseness program agalnsl aexual haraumentcarrlecl out 1 
e) Nature of action laken by the~ NA 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

The maintenance of cost ftiCCifds as spedl\ed by the Central Govemmen1 under section 148(1) of lhe Compenles Act, 
2013, is no1 applicable to the Company and acc:ordingly such accounls and records are not made and maintained. 

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR Tlll DATE OF REPORT 

There are no material changes and commitments. atrecting the financial position d the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the flfl8ndal.year of the Company to which the financial statements rela1e and the date of the report 
other than those dlsdosed In the finandal statements. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POUCY 

Purwant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act. 2013, the company regularty maintains a proper chedc in normal 
course of its business regatdlng Risk Management. 

The Company manages. monitors and reports on the principal risks and ooc:ertalnUes that can Impact Its ability to 
achieve its strategic objectives. The Company's risk management systems and programa comprises of various 
processes, structures and guidelines which assist the Company to Identify, assess, monitor and manage Its riSks, 
lnclud'~r~g any malerial d\anges to Its risk profile. To achieve this, the Company has dearty defined the responsibility 
and authority or the Company's Management to oversee and manage the Risk Management Pro;rams. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

However, In ·accordance with regulation 21 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), the provisions of this 
regulation are not applicable to the company. 

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION AND OTHER PRESCRIBED MATTERS 

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and non.-executive and independent directors to maintain 
the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and management. As of March 31, 2021, the 
Board had six members, two of whom are executive directors, ooe is a non executive director end three independent 
directors. One of the executive directors of the Board Is a woman director. 

The policy of the Company on directors' appointment and remuneration, indoding the criteria for determining 
qualifiC8tioos, positive attiit:iotes, Independence of a director and other maners, as required under sub-section (3) of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on the website of the company, at WYM'.hlsarspinningmiDs.com. 

We alrarm that the remuneration paid to the directors Is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration 
Polley of the Company. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY 

Your Company maintains an adequate and effective Internal Control system commensurate with its size and 
complexity. Internal control systems provide, among other things, a reasonable assurance that trnnsactions are 
executed with Management authorization and that they are reco«<&d in all material respects to permit preparation of 
financial statements In confoonlty with established accounting principles and that the assets of your Company are 
adequately safeguarded against significant misuse 0t toss. 

During the year under review, the Company Ctlnlinued to implement their suggestions and recommendations to 
lmpn:we the Internal financial control environment Their scope of wor1l inter-alia includes review ol operational 
elrldeocy, effectiveness ol systems and processes, and assessing the internal conlrol strengths In aD areas. In addition 
to statutory audit. the financial controls of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who 
report their findings to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and 
effectiveness of Internal control system end suggests further strengthening the same, wherever requi'ed. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

During the year under review, there Is no material O«<er(s) passed by the regulatOtS or courts or tribunal impeding the 
going concam status and company's operation In future. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE) RULES 2014 

The paid up listed equity share capital of the Company as at 31• March 2021 was Rs. 3,73,50,0001- comprising of 
37.35,000 equity shares of Rs. 101- each. No required under Companies (Share Capital and DebentUre) Rules 2014, 
during the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares with differenUel voting rights, sweat equity 
shares. preference shares and employee stock options end also not made any provision for purchase of its own shares 
by employees or by trustees. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VOTING RIGHT NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY THE EMPLOYEES 

During the year under review, there Is NIL disclosure as required under provisions of section 67(3) of Companies Act 
2013. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee oonsliluted by the Company functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under the 
provisions of Clause 49 of llsUng Agreement read with provisions of Section 177 of Companles·Act, 2013 & rules 
made thereunder and additional responsibilities assigned to it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee 
reviews the Internal audit reports and flndlngs of Internal auditors along with the comments of management. The 
functiOO$ of the Audit Committee among others indude approving and implementing the audit procedures. effective 
supervision of financial reporting system, Whistle Blower Mechanism. internal control and procedures, recommending 
appointment of Statutory Auditors,. Cost AudltOtS to Board and also ensuring compliances with regulatoty guidelines. 
The Board has constituted the Audit Committee comprises of IC?.IIowing: 
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The other relevant details of Audit Committee are given under Corporate Governance Report aMexed with Director's 
Report. · 

VIGIL MECHANISMIWHISnE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blawer PolicyMgil Mechanism" to deal with instance of fraud and 
mismanagement. if any. The Company has adopted revised Whistle Blower Policy w.e.f. 11111 April, 2019. The details of 
the Policy are explained in the Corporate Gover:nance Report and also available at company's website 
www.hisarsplnningmlls.com .. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF. DIRECTORS 

During the year under review, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its perlormance and as well as 
that of its committees, ~ividual Directors, Including the Chairman of the Board in compliance with the Companies Ad 
2013 and Listing Regulations. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various 
aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board, its committee & members, their experience & 
competencies, performance ol specifiC duties & obligations, govemance and also In accordance with Performance 
Evaluation Policy of Company. Broadly the performance of Non·lndependent/ExecutlveM'hole Tine Director(s) was 
evaluated on the basis of their own perfonnance, expertise, iOtelligence, their qualitative & quantitative contribution 
!awards operational achievements, organizational performance etc. The performance of Non-Ekecutive Independent 
Directors were evaluated oo the basis of thei' conslructive participations in Board/Committee/General meetings, their 
informed & balanced decision-making, ability to monitor financial controls & systems, & certain allied parameters. The 
performance evaluation of varioos Board Committees constituted under Companies Ad. & Listing Agreement was made 
on the basis of their respective terms of reference, discharge of functions, governance etc. 

Disclosure of Information's as required under rule 5C1l of Comeanles CApoolntment and Remuneration of 
Manaaerlal Pe~onnell Rules. 2014 · 

The Provisions ol Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 requiring particular.; of the employees in receipt of remuneration in ekcess of Rs. 102 lakhs per year to be 
disclosed in the R_eport oC Board of Directors are not app[lcable to the Company as none of the employees was In 
receipt of remuneration in ekcess of Rs. 102 lakhs during the financial year 2020-21. 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other delals as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
are provided in the Annexure forming part of the Annual Report Having regard to the provisions of Section 136(1) read 
with ils relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report exduding the aforesaid Information is being 
sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for Inspection at the Registered Ofrtce of the 
Company during wor1dng hour.; and any member interested in obtaining such information may IMite to the Company 
Secretary and the same will be furnished free of cost 

Tl"le Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has affirmed that ·the remuneration Is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Managemen~ discussion and analysis r~port. as required by listing Regulations, loons part of the Annual Report 

CODE OF CONDUCTS 

The company has adopted the following code of Conducts/ policies w.t!.f Aprl11, 2019: 
1. Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designated Persons as per the SEBI {Prohibition of 
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Insider Trading (Amendment}) Regulations, 2018. 
2. Code of Pradlces and Procedures for fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 
3. Policy and Procedure for Enquiry in case of leak! suspected teak of Unpublished Price Sensitive lnfonnaUon. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors wish to' convey their appreciation to aU of the Company's employees for their enormous efforts as well as 
their collective contribution to the Company's perfonnance. The Directors would alSo like to thank shareholders, 
customers, dealers. suppliers, Financial Institutions, bankers, Government and an the other business associates for the 
continuous support given by them 1o the Company and their confidence In its management 

Place: Chandlgam 
Dated: September 06, 2021 

FORM NO. AOC.2 

By order of the Board of Directors 

Sdl· 
(Mtth'"h Kumar Gupta) 

Chainnan 
DIN - 07692870 

Fom1 for dladosure of particulars of contncts/arnngements entered Into by the company with re~ed P*flle• 
referred to In aub-aectlon (1) of aectlon 188 of the Companlu Act, 2013 Including certllln anna length 
transactions under third proviso thereto {~ursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of MCUon 134 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the CompaniH (ACcounts) Rut .. , 20U) · · · 

1.Detalls of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at ann's length bas!S 
(a)Name(s) of the related· party and nature of relaUonshlp: NIL 
(b)Nature. of contracWarrangemen!Sib"ansactlons: NIL 
(c)Durallon d the contractsi81T81'1Qementsltransactlons: NIL 
(d)Sallent tenns of lhe contracts or arrangements or transactions. including the Value, if any: NIL 
(e}JuStlflcatlon for entering Into such contracts or arrangements or transactlonl: · NIL 
(f}date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL 
{g)Atnount paid as adVances, If any: NIL 
(h)Date on which the special resolution was passed In general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: 

NIL . 

2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis 

{a)Name(s) of lhe related party and Mr. Naveen Kansal- Usha Yams Umited- Common· 
nature of relationship: Husband of ~rs. Sapna Managing Director and two relatives of 

Kansat, Whole Time Exocutive Directors are Directors lri 
DirectOr. Usha Yams limited and common 

promotltf shareholders 

(b)Nature of contracts/ Emplo~ent Purchase, sale & supply of goods 
arrangements/ transactions: 

(c) Duration of the contracts/ Permanent employmimt Annual 
arrangementsl transactions: 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or Ganaml terms of Purchase. sal a & supply of goods at 
arrangements or transactions employment as appllca~ mar1c.et value 
lnc:tuding the value, If any: · on other employees. 

(e}Date(s) of approval by~~. 29.12.2016 Omnibus Approval on 14.02.2020 
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Ptac.: Ch.lnd~rf'l 
Dated: September 06, 20~1 

Corponrte Governance Report 

NU NU 

By order of the Board of ~rectors 

Sd/· 
(lllthtuh Kumar Guptl) 

Chalnnan 
DIN • 07682870 

1. Company's philosophy on code of Govema"nce 

Corporate Governance Is a set ofsystem, proceSs and principles whiCh ensure that a Company Is govemiKI in the best 
interest of aD stakeholders. The objective of GOod Corporute Governance Is to ensure the Board's commitment towards 
transparent management to maximize long tenn value for lhe Compaliy's shareholders of al stakeholders. We believe 
that good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of the ~~ and sound management practk:es and 
comp!iance with the~ coupled with adher~ to the highest standards of tmr1$J)8.rttnty and business ethics. 

2. Board of DlrKtorw 

The Board of Directors of your Campa~ has en optimum combination of Exerutive 8ncf Non-Executive Dlrectcn so as 
to have a balanced structure. As on 31 March 2021, the Board d Ofrectors C()flSists of lb: Directors, out of which two 
are Promoter Directors (Managing 0~01" and a non executive Director), one Executive Woman Director end three are 
Independent Non-Executive Directors. None of the Olr$ctcn on the board Is a membef on more than 10 committees 
and Chabman of more than 5 committees as spedfled In SEBI (Ustlng Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 ("herelnaf\er referred to as. Listing Regulatloru.-). across an the companies In which they ere 
Directors. The necessary dlsclosuras regarding committee memberships have been made by an the Directors. The 
Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of Independence specified In Section 149 of Companies Act 
2013 and rules made there under and meet with requiremen.~ of Listing Regulations. 

During the tlnanclai year 2020-21, seven Board meetings were held. The meeUngs were held on May 30, 2020, July 31, 
2020, September 04, 2020, September 15, 2020, Odobet 14, 2020, November 11, 2020 and February 12, 2021. ~ 
stipulated by Code of Independent Directors under Companies Act 2013 and under Listing Regulations. a separate 
meeting of Independent directors was held on February 12, 2021 to review the perfonnance of Non-Independent 
directors lndudlng the Chairmen and the Boards as a whole. The Independent D!recton also reviewed the quality, 
content and timeliness of follow of Information between Management and the Board. AD independent Directors were 
present in the said meeting. 

The names and categories of Directors on the board. their attendance at Board Meetings during the year and at the Last 
Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Olrectorshlpsl Committee memberships/ Chairmanship held by them In 
other Companies are given below: 

No. of OW"ectorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship as on 31.03.2021:-

Nama of 
Director 

category Attendance 
Particulars · 

Board Last 
Meeting AGM 

No. of Directorship No. of MembershiP/ 
Chalnnanshlp,ln 
Committees_~ 

· Members Chalnnan Member Chalnnan 
hlp ship ship Ship 
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Mrs. Sapna ED 7 v .. 
Ka""'' 

Mr. Anurag ED/MD 7 Ye• 
Gupla 

Mr. Mithlesh I NED 7. Ye• 
Kumar Gupta 

Mr. Sudesh I NED' 7 v .. 
Kumar Garg 

Mr. Sandeep . IN EO 7 Ye• 
Suri 

Mr. NikhH Goel NED ·7 Yes 

INED : Independent Non Executive Director 
NED : Non Executive Director 
MD : Managing Director (Executive) 
EO : Executtve Director 

dlrectonhlp 

1 NO 1 Nil NO 

1 Nil 1 Nil NU 

1 1 2 1 Nil 

1 Nil 1 Nil Nil 

1 Nil NIL NIL Nil 

1 Nil 1 1 Nil 

"The committees considered for. the above purpose are Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

3. INFORMATION SUPPUED TO THE BOARD 

The Board has complete access to all information about the Company. All the meetings are conducted as per well 
designed end structured agenda. All lhe agenda items are backed by necessary sUpporting information Including 
minimum information as stipulated under Regulation 17(7) of Listing Regulations to the extent Ills applicable & relevant 
and documents to enable the Board to take Informed decisions. Agenda also includes minute& of the meetings of all the 
Board Committees for the information of Board. The Board reviews the declarations/reports made by the Management 
regarlfng C9ffipliance. with applicable laws on quarterly basis as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify 
instances ol non.:.compliances, if any. Post meetings, aU Important decisions taken at the meeUng are communicated to 
lhe concerned o!flcials a"nd departments. · 

4. MAXIMUM DIRECTORSHIP & TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The maximum tenure of Independent Oiredors is in compliance with the Companies Ad 2013. The Company has 
issued formal letters of appointment to all the Independent OirectOC"S. At the time of appointment ol en independent 
director, It was ensured that the number of Boards on which such independent director secves is restricted to seven 
listed companies as an independent director and three listed companies as an Independent director in case such 

· per50t1 is serving os a whOie·lime (executive) director of a listed company. The terms & conditions of appointment of 
independent directors"are available on Company's website viz. www.hisarspinningmitls.com. 

5. Code of Conduct 

The Company is committed to conduct its business in. accordance with the pertinent laws. rules and regulations and 
with the highest standards of business ethics. The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct lor all Board Members 
and Senior Management of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on Company's website viz. 
www.hlsarspinningmills.com. All Board members and Senior Management Personnel have alfumed compliance with 
the Code. Adedaratlon signed by Sh. Anurag Gupta, DIN 00192688, Managing Director of the Company to this effect is 
endosed at the end of this report 

6. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRAOING·CODE 

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading. The Code is ap'pUCable to Promoters and Promoter's Group, all Directors. KMP's and 
such Designated Employees etc. who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating 
to Company. The Code lays down guidelines advising them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made 
while dealing with the shares of Company and cautioning them about the consequences of violations. The Company 
Secretary Is responsible for Implementation of this code. During the year under review, there has been doe compliance 
with the said code. The Company has also formulated a Code of Practices and Pnx:edures for Fair Disclosure of 
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Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and policy and procedure for inquiry In case of leek 1 suspecte<fleak at un- ·· 
published Price Sensitive Information, In accordance with SEBI (Prohibition Of tns'der Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended. The same is also posted on ~pany'~ website viz. WNW.hlsan;;pinningmills.com. 

7. MD and CFO Certification 

As per Regulation 17 of listing Regulations. Sh. Shared Goel, Chief Financial Ofrteer (CFO) & Sh. Anurag Gupta, DIN 
00192888, Managing Director of the Company have !s5ued certifiCate pursuant to the provisions of listing Regulations 
certifying that the financial statements and the cash flow sliJtement do not contain anY materially untrue statement and 
these statefnents represerii a true and fair view of the Company's Bffain;;. The said certificate is attached herewith and 
forms part of the Annual Report. 

8. CONMriTEES OF THE BOARD 
The Board of DlrectOB hav6 constituted various Board Committees In cOmpliance of Companies Act as well as Listing 
Regulations/listing Agreement to deal with specifiC ateas and 9Clivlties as stipulated under the Companies Act end 
Listing Obligations. The Board Committees meet at regular Intervals, takes necessary steps tO perform its 
duties/functions entrusted by the Board. 

(A) Audit Committee 

Audit Committee functions in acaroance with the terms of reference as set out under Listing Regulations read with 
provisions 'of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules mede there under and additional responsibilities 
assigned to it by Board of Directors d the Company. The Committee reviews the Internal audit reports and findings d 
interilalaudiiOI'S along wtth the comments d management. The functions of the Audit Committee among others, Include 
approving and implementing the audit procedures, etreclive super\'il:lon of financial reporting system, Whistle 8kJwer 
Mechanism, internal oontrol and procedures, recorJJmending appointment of StatutorY Auditors, Cost Auditors to Board 
and also ensuring compliances with. regulatory guidelines. The composition, names d members, chairperson, 
pertlculan; of the meetings and atteodanoe of the members during the financial )Uf.-& as below: 

During the rlnandal year 20~21, six Audit Commlnee meetings were held on May 30, 2020, Juty 31, 2020, September 
tS, 2020, October 14, 2020, November 11, 2020 and February 12.2021. 

S.NO. NAME OESIGNATlON NO. OF MEETINGS 
ATTENDED DURING 
THE YEAR 202G-2021 

1. Mr. Milhlesh Kumar Gupta, Non-executive and Independent Chalnnan 6 
Ol<ec!O< 

2. Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg, NOJHlxecutive and Independent Memw 6 
Director 

3. Mr. Anura Gu DOeda< Memw 6 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Audltors were invitees to the meetings. The Company Seaetary acts as secretary to 
the Audit Committee. 

(B). Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions In accordance with the terms of reference as set out under 
listing Regulations read with provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act. 2013 & rules made there under. The 
functions of Nomin.:1tion and Remunef'Btlon Committee Include formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to 
remuneration of directors. key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors and the board of directors, devising a policy on diversity of board of directors, 
identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with criteria laid down and recommend to the board at directOI'S their appointment and removat etc. During 
the financial year 20~2021, one meeting of Nomination and f{emunerntion Committee was held on September 04, 
2020. 
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Remuneration Polley 

The objective of this Policy is directed towards having· a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and 
retain talent. The Company has adopted an<l implemen{ed the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Ad., 2013 on 
the requirement of the Committee to recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, 
KMPs and other employees. 

I) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 

No remuneration was paid to lhe Non-Executive Directcn; during the year 2020-21. 

II) Remuneration or Executive Directors 

The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year 2020-21 are g~n below: 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Neme of Directors Salary Perquisite~· Commission Total 

Mr. Anurag Gupta, 15.00 . . 15.00 
Managing Director 

M~. Sapna Kansal 15.00 . 15.00 

There Is no Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) in the Company as on March 31 2021. Further, there ere no 
pecooiary relationships or transactions of Non-ExecuUve Director vis-a vis the Company Which has potential conflict 
with !he interest of the Company at large. 

(C). Stakeholders Relationship Cammlnee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee functions in accaroance with the terms or reference as set out under 
provisions of Listing Regulations read with prOvisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act. 2013 & rules made there 
under I.e. redressing of Shareholdersllnvestors complaints, regarding to share transfers, non-receipt of balance 
sheet/dividend by the shareholders etc. During the financial year 2020-21, four Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
meetings were held on May 30, 2020. September 15, 2020. November 11. 2020 and February 12, 2021. The 
composition. names of the members. chairperson. particulars of the meetings and attendance of the members during 
the year are as below: 

S.NO NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 
DURING THE YEAR 2020.2021 , . Mrs. Sapna Kan:;al, Non Executive Director Member 4 

2. Mr. Nikhil Goel, Non-executive Director Chairman 4 

3. Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta. Non Executive Member 4 
Independent Director 

. During lhe financial year. the requests for transfer/ demat I remat of shares, change of address etc have been duly 
effected. During the year. no complaint from any of the shareholders was received and no grievance was pending at 
the i:!nd of the financial year. 
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Details of the Compliance Officer of the Company for SEBI/ Stock Exchange/ROC related Issues etc. 

Mrs. Nikita Singla 

(D). Risk Management Committee: 

The Listing Regulations in this respect are not applicable to the company. 

9. Gener111 Body MHtlnga 

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were hekl as under.· 

YEAR VENUE DATE TIME WHETHER ANY SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION PASSED 

2019-20 9"' KM Slone, Hisar Bhiwani mad, 30J09/2020 10.00A.M. Yos 
V.P.O Dabm (Hisar) 

2018-19 9"' KM Slone, Hisar Bhiwani mad, 30J0912019 10.00 A.M. No 
V.P.O Oabm (Hisar) 

2017-18 9"' KM Slone, Hisar Bhiwani mad, 2910912018 10.00 A.M. Ye• 
V.P.O Debra (Hisar) 

No Postal ballots were used for voting in these meetings. At the forthcoming AGM, there is no Item on the agenda that 
needs approval by Postal ballots. 

10. Subsidiary Company 

During lhe year ended March 31, 2021, neither the Company has any subsidiary nor any material listed I unlisted 
sub$kliary company. 

11. Risk Management Polley 

The Company's Risk Management Policy is available at company's website www.hisarspinningmilts.com. 

12. Disclosures 

a) Related PartyTranyct!om 

All related party transactions of the Company are dealt with in accordance with Related Party Transactions Policy ol 
Company and as per provisions of section 168 of Companies Act 2013 & rules made lhere under and as per Usting 
Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Comminee and the Board for approval by 
specifying the nature, value. tenns and conditions of the transactions etc. Omnibus approval is obtained for the 
transactions which are loreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all related party transactions for whk:h omnibus 
approval has obtained are presented before the Audil Committee as well as to Board on quarterly basis. Although all 
related party transactions are entered in ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the Company with its promoters, Oitectors or Key Managerial Personnel, 
their relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the inter~st of the Company at large. 

Suitable disdosuros as required by the Accounting Standards (AS 18) are dlsdosed in Notes to Accounts in the Annual 
Report.· The Related Party Transactions Policy of Company available on the Company's website: 
www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

b) Disclosure of Acc.ountlng Treatment In oreoarntion of Financial Stntements 

The Company has followed al relevant Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of Companies Act 2013 & rules 
made there under and laid down by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. while preparing Financial Statements. 

c) Details of noo-comQiiance by the listed entity penalties strictures imoosed by stock exchanaefsl or !he board or Any 
statutory authority on any matter retat!td to capital maf1o;ets during the last three yearn 
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During the last three years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any 
Statutory Authority lor non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets. 

d) Whistle Blower PolicyMgil Mechanism 

The Company has adopted WhisUe Blower Policy and has established the necessary mech8nism for employees to 
report concerns about unethical behavior. This policy is reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee to check the 
effectiveness of the policy & related matters. No pers.onnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 
relevant delails of Whistle Blower Policy are given under the Director's Report and same is available on the Company's 
website: www.hisarspinningmi!ls.com. 

e) Oetajls of comQiiance with mandatory reoutremenl!! and adootion of the non-maodatorv reoUirements 
The Company has complied with ott applicable mandatory requirements. The Company has not adopted non­
mandatory requirements. 

f) Subsidiary Comoany 

During the year ended March 31, 2021, neither tho Company has any subsidiary nor any material listed/unlisted 
subsidiary company. 

g) Independent pirector's Dedarntions 

All Independent Directors have conrlm\ed that they meet the criteria of "Independence' as stipulated under the 
Companies Ad, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

h) Q!sdosuru by Senior Management & Key Manaoeripl Personnel 

Seolor Management and Kay Managerial Personna! have made disdosure to the Board relating to an material, financial 
and other transactions stating that they did not have any personal interest that could result In a conflid with the Interest 
of the Company at large. The material, financial and commercial transactions where Key Managerial Pensonnel have 
personal interest forms part of the disclosure on related parties referred to in Notes to Annual Accounts. 

13. Pert'OITI\Ince evaluation of Board of Director~ 

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and effectiveness as well as 
that of Its Committees and Individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. For Board and its Committees, the 
exercise was earned out thrOugh a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Boards functioning 
such as composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific dulles & 
obligations, governance issues etc. The Performance evaluation of Non-Independent directors-induding the Chairman 
was carried out by Independent Directors in their separate meeting. The DlrectQtS were satisfied With the evaluation 
~. which reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness of the Board and its Committees. The necessary 
detaUs regarding criteria of performance evaluation is mentioned under Director's Report The Performance Evaluation 
Policy of Board ~f Directors Is available on Company's website viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com .. 

Since the Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, there were no observations in the board evaluation 
canied out for the year, hence no action was proposed. The previous year's observations in the board evaluation were 
nil and hence no action was warranted. 

14. Familiarisation Programme/Induction for Independent Directors 

At the Board Meetings, apart from the regular agenda 1tems, it is ensured that the Board members are provided a deep 
and thorough insight into the business model of the Company and updates either by way of presentation of business 
units or otherwise. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their experience. At the time or 
appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to himlher, which inter alia explains the role, 
funcUon, duties, responSibilities expected of him/her as a Director of the Company and expected time commitments. As 
requited under Usting Regulations, Company has conducted a familiarization progrnmme for its independent directors 
under which the necessary information was provided to familiarize them with the nature, activities, products of the 
Company and also about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company. The details of familiarization programme 
imparted to Independent Directors is provided on the website of the Company at www.hisarsplnningmills.com. 
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15. Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of. ttMt Board of Directors 

Core skills /expertise/ compelertcies identiflfld by the board of directors as required in the context of its business(es) 
and sectOf(s) for it to function effectively and those actually available with the board along with the Oifedln Who 

' '""' "'"'' ~ '. "'"'-Name• of I I .,. I 
of the >rodoct Stai! 

~ 

~I 

The above points are allotted to the director.~ out of 10 basis points. 

16. Confirmation of Independence of Independent Directon1 

The Board of Diredors has confirmed tbat in their opinion. the independent directors fulflD the conditions specified in 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Oisdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the 
managenlent. 

17. Rnignatlon of Independent Director(•) 

No Independent Director resigned from the Board of the Company during the year under review. 

18. Board Dtvenlty Polley 

The Nomination and Remuneratloli Cooimlttee have formulated Board Ofverslty Policy In accordance with the Listing 
Regulations. Under the said policy, it is recognized that a Board composed of appropriately qua~fied people with broad 
range of experiencs relevant to the business of the Company Is important to ·achieve etfective corporate governance 
and suStained commercial suocess of the Company. In order to ensure that the Company's boardroom has appropriate 
balance of skUis, experience S.nd dlverslty of perspectives that are imperative for the execution of its business strategy, 
the Company shal while selecting the Board Members consider a number of fac:tcn, iOcluding but not limited to age, 
culture, functional skills, industryfprolessional experience, financiallitemte and integrity etc .. Tho ultimate decision will 
be based on merit end contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. 

19. Means of cOmmunications 

Th.e quarterty. half yearly & &Mual financial results. notices etc. are published in widely circulating national & lOcal daUy 
newspapers, The Pioneer in English edition and Vyapar Bharti in Hindi Edition. The same ere also being posted on the 
website of BSE www bsejndla com under Scrip Code 521068 end also on the website of the company. 

20. General Shareholder Information 

Annual Geneml Meeting at 12:00 Hrs. on September 30, 2021 at Regislefed Offtee of the Company at 9"' KM Stone, 
Hiser Bhiwani road, V.P.O Debra (Hiser). 

Financial Cal.:!ndar 

Date of BOok Closu~e 

Dividend Paym.ent Date 
listing on Stock Exctiange 
Scrip Code 
Corporate Identity Number (ClN) 
CDSLISIN No. 

:April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 

: 25.09.2021 to 30.09.2021 
(both days inclusive) 
:NA 
: Bombay Stock ExchanQe·Limited (BSE) 
: 521068 
: l17112HR1992PLC031621 
: INE689E01014 

Annualllsting fee for the year 2020-2021 has duly been paid to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 
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Marlt.t price data- High and Low during each month on BSE In the financial year 2020-21. Stock code· 521068 
(Source: www.bteJndla.cqm) 

Months High • Low Closed 

April, 2020 19.95 19.40 19.95 

May, 2020 20.50 19.00 20.SO 

June, 2020 23.60 19.45 23.30 

July, 2020 25.60 21.00 21.00 

August, 2020 24.10 19.95 20.55 

September, 2020 19.55 19.55 19.55 

October, 2020 18.60 17.70 17.70 

November, 2020 16.85 14.50 15.95 

December, 2020 15.20 14.45 14.45 

January, 2021 14.45 13.74 13.74 

February, 2021 13.06 11.88 12.47 

March, 2021 11.86 11.27 11.27 
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Registrar and Share Tra~ler Agent 

Share Transfer System 

Mls Indus Portfolio Private limited 
~5. Bati Nagar, New Delhi-110015 

Shares lodged in physical form with the RTA directty 
or through Company, are processed and returned, 
duly transferred, wtthln fifteen days normally, except 
in cases which are under objection. 

In respect of sh8fes held in dematerialised mode, the 
transfer takes; place lnstanlaneously between the 
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· HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Compliance Otfteer 

E-maitiD's 

transferor, lmnsferee and the Depository Participant 
through electronic debit/credit of the a<X:?U"ts invotved. 

Mrs. Nikila Singla 

hsmt20QQ@ntdiffmail.cxm 

Distribution of shafeholding as on March 31, 2021. 

Range of Shares No. of %of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Shareholdlng 
Shareholders 

0-500 9871 97.55 1433230 3B.37 

501-1000 138 1.36 110300 2.95 

1001-5000 70 0.69 135700 3.64 

5001-1 OCI09 8 0.08 60400 1.62 

10001-20000 7 0.07 113900 3.05 

20001-30000 7 0.07 172280 4.61 

30001-410000 0 0 0 0 

4000 1-50000 3 0.03 134500 3.80 

5000 1·1 00000 8 0.08 518000 13.87 

""""" 1 00000 7 O.o7 1058800 28.29 

. 101UI 100 3735000 100 

Shareholdlng Pattein as on March 31, 2021. 

c:.tooo<Y No. olahans PerCtoutaga 

'"""''"""'""""'"'"' G<oup 
1885870 50.49 

Fl's/F11's/ Bank.s/ r.4utual Funds . . 

Indian Public 1649130 .t9.51 

""""" . . 
........ h ... by Custodian • """""' """" . . 
Depository Receipts have been Issued 

Telal 3735000 100 

Decals ollh8reholdlng of Oiredors in the Company as on March 31, 2021. 

Name of tMrector No. of aMra held 

NIKHILGOEL 

ANURAG GUPTA 

SAPNA KANSAI. 

Plant(s) Location 

Address for correspondence 

.22,36.670 (59.88'JI.) sham 

9" K.M. Stone, Hiaat Btvwani Road, 
V.P.O. Dabra (Hiuf)125005 
Hlsar Spinning MiDI timited 
9"' K.M. Slone, Hlsar Bhlwanl Road, 
V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125005 

29 

160400 

184250 

&3100 



J 

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

E-mail tO's 
Ph. 01662-260397 Fax: 91-1662-260397 
hsml2000@rediffmail.oom 

Credit Ratings Not Applicable. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
Interests of listed enthy at large 
There Is no such related party transaction that may have potential conflict •with the interests of the listed entity at 
large. 

b) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock 
exchange (s) or the board or any statutory nuthority, on any matter related to capital maril.ets, during last 
three years 
No ma}or penalty was levied on the company by any statutory authority. 

c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affii-mZitlon that no personnel was 
denied access to the Audit Committee 
The company has revised the vigil mechanism I whistle blower policy and the same is also disclosed on the 
website of the company at www.hisarspinningmills.com and displayed at the conspicuous place in the company. 
Further, we hereby Affirm that no personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee. 

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements 
All the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements have been duly complied with by the company to the extent 
applicable to tho company. 

e) Web link where policy for determining 'matert;:.l' subsidiaries Is disclosed 
The company does not have any subsidiary I associate I joint ventures within the meaning of Companies Act. 2013 
and Accounting Standards. 

f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions 
www.hisarsoinningmills.com. 

g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities 
AI present there is no commodity price risk in the company. 

{h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferenlllll allotment or qualined institutions placement as 
specified under Regulation 32 (7 A). 
Not 3ppllcable 

(i) A certificate from a practicing comp:my secretary that none of the directors on the board of the company 
havo been debarred cr disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by tho 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is appended hereunder: 

CfBT!fiCAJE Of tiON-QISOIJAI lf!CAT!ON Of QIBECIQBS 

{pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) Pf the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) · 

To, 
The Members of 
Hisar Spinning Mi!ls Limited 
(CIN: L 17112HR1992PLC03162t) 
Regd. Office: Village & PO. Dabra, 
Hisar. Haryana • 125005 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the DircctOI'S of Hisar 
Spinning f.Aills Limitod having CIN: L17112HR1992PLC031621 and having registered-office at Village & PO. Dabra, 
Hlsar. Haryana • 125005 (hCreinaftar referred to as 'the Company'), produced befOfC me by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate. in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) 
of the SocuriUes Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dlsdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion end to the best of my information and according to the verifications {including DireciOfS ldcnti(teation 
Number (DIN) status at the portal W\Wo'.mca.gov in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to ·me by the 
Company & its officers, 1 hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
DiredOI'S of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Alfairs, or any such other 
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Statui()()' Authority. 

Ensuring the eligibiUty of for the appointment I continuity ol every Director on the Board is the responsibility of lhe 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifiCBtion. This 
certificate Is neither an assurance as to the fut\Jfe viability of the Company nor of the elflci8flcy or effectiveness wtth 
which the managemenl has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Chendigartl 
Date: August20, 2021 

Signature: Sdl· 
Name: Sanjiv Kumar Go8l 
Membership No.: FCS 2107 
CP No.: 1248 
UOIN No: F002107C000810420 
PR No.: 87312020 

.. 

01 where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which Is mandatorfty 
required, In the relevant financial year. 
There was no SUCh instance during th,e financial year under review. 

' 
(k) The total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and Its subsldlarin, on a consolidated basis, to the 
statutory auditor and all entitles In the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor Js a part: 

Mls Romesh K AggaJWal & Associates were paiq a total sum of Rs. 2.00 Lekhs (excluding taxes) during the fl08ndel 
year under review. l 

(I) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redreasal) Act, 2013: • 
a. number of complaints flied during the finandai year. N~ 
b. number of complaints disposed of duling the financial year. Nil 
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO OEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT I UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

No physical shares are lying as undelivered I unclaimed . 

. DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCJ 

As provided under SEBI (Ustlng Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, It is hereby deciared that 
all Board Member's and Senior Management Personnel have amnned compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted 
by lhe Company for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

Place: Chandlgarh 
Dated: September 06, 2021 
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To 

The Board of Dtrectors 
Hlsar Spinning IIIIIs Umlted 

MD AND CEO CERDF!CADON 

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash now statement.of Hisar Spinning Mills 
limited for the year ended March 31, 2021 and to the best of our know1edge and belief, we 
state that; 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) there arc. to the best of our knowle-dge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which.are fraudulent, Illegal or in violation of the Company's code of 
conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to .financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in lhe 
design or operaUon of such lntemai _controls. 

(d) We have Indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

(i) that there are no significant changes in intenial control Qver fLnancial reporting during the year; 

(ii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

Yours sincerely, 

Sdl· 
(Anurag Gupta) 

Managing Director 

Place: Chandlgarh 
~:SepbHnber08,2021 
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To the Members of Hlur Spinning Milia Umlted 

t.have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Hlsar Spinning MUts Limited, Hisaf 
(Haryana) fot the year ended March 31, 2021. as stipulated in Regulation E of Schedule V of the SEBI (listing 
Obligations and DiscJosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

The compliance of condll!O"s of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's Manage,j,ent. My 
examination was limited to the procedures and Implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the f.nandal 
statements of the company. • 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, and the Information 
giveo by the management. I certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above mentioned regulations. 

I state that in respect of investor grievance received during the year ended March, 31, 2021, no Investor grievances 
were pending against the Company, as per the records maintained by the Company and presented to the 
Investors/Shareholders Grievance Committee. 

I further state that compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency ot 
effectiVeness with wtlich the Manageni'ent has conducted the affairs of the company 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: August20, 2021 

.. 
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ANNEXURE '1' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to section 204 (1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Compankts (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 
To, 

The Members, 
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited 
9th KM Stone, Hlsar Bhlwanl Road, 
V.P.O Oabra ( Hisar), Haryana -125005 

1 have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisiorls and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Hiser Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called "the company"). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate cooductslstatutory compliance 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Hisar Spinning Mills Llml1ed's bOoks, papers, minutes books , forms and returns f~ed 
and other reco«ls maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its olf~eers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion , 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,2021 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance -
mechanism in place to the extent. in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

1. I have examined the books, papers minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Hisar 
Spinning Mills Llmi~ for tho fmancial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of 

i) The companies Act. 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under; 
Iii) The Deposlio'ries Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed there under; 

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Ad., 1992 (SEBI Act):-

(a)The Securilles and Exchange Board of India (SubslanU81 Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) 
RegutaUorls, 20 11 ; . 

(b)The SecuriUes and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) RegutaUons, 1992, and 
SeaJrities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations. 2015: 

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(d)The Securtties and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations. 2014 
(Not apPlicable 1o the Company during the Audit Period); 

(e)The SecuriUes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Ustlng of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 
(Not applicable to the Company during lhe Audit Period); 

(f)The SeaJrities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Tninster Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with dienl; 

(g)The Securities and Exchange Board ollndla (Detlstlng of EQuity Shams) Regulations, 2009 
(Not applicable 1o lhe Company during the Audit Period): 

(h)The Securities and Exchange Board ot India (Buyback of Sea.uities) Regulations, 1998 
{Nol applicable to the Company during lha Auc:lit .~e~); 

2. I have relied on the representation made by the company and its olf~eers for systems and mechanism pu1 in place by 
the company for compliances under the applicable Act. Laws and RegutatM;lns lO the Company. 

3. I have also examined compliance 'Nith applicable dauses of the follo'Niilgs: 
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i) Secretarial Standards Issued by ;rhe.lnstltute of Company Secrotaries of India, eft'ective from July 01, : · 
2015. . .. 

ill The eBtwhue Ll$tlng ~mefit entered Into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Llmlted ·anc~ 
The Securftles'lind Exctiartge Board d India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) · 
Regu1auons. 2015 notll'led w.e.r. ~01. 2015. 

During the year Under review, the Company has· complied 'IIIith lbe provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Slandaros, etc. n•ontioued aboYo. · 

I further report that: 
,, 

The Board of Directors at the Company is duly constituted with proper ballince of Executive Oirectoni, Non- ExecutiYe 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes In the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during . 
the period under review were carried out In compllanoe wlth,the pro~ns of the Ad. 

Adequate notice is given to al directors to schedule the Board t.tMtlng. agenda and ~ notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for -$eeking and obtaining further Information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and fof meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meellngs were carried out unanimously as recorded In the minutes of 
the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 

1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor, and ensure compiEance with appllcatMe taws, suits, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

Place: Chandigarh 
Dale: Augusl 20. 2021 

., 

., 
! . 

.. 
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Annexure •r to Dlrecton' Repor1 

Information as per section 217(.1)(e) read with companies (Disclosure of ParticularS in the Report of Oitectol's) Rules 
1S88 and forming part of the Olrectots' Report for the period ended 31st March, 2021. ·· 

'1. CONSERVATION. OF ENERGY 

a) Energy conservation measures taken: 

The Company has been giving high pri(,nty to co~se.rvatlon of energy by dose monitoring of, energy consuming 
equipments. All efforts are made for Installing energy saving devices wherever required. 

b) Acldltlonallnvestment and propos~ts.' If any, being Implemented for reduction ofconsurriptlon of energy: 

New equlpments, whenever required, are purchased from lime to tifne. 

c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for reductlon of energy consumption a-:-d consequent 
Impact on the cost of production of goods: 

The measures taken to conserve energy resulled in more production. However, there was no savin~ in consumption 
due to increased production and increase in rates of poo.yer. 

d) Total energy consumpUon and energy consumption per unit of production as per Fonn-A of the annexure to 
the rules In respect of Industries specified In the schedule thereto: 

D. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION . 

Eft"orts made In techn~logy absorption aa ptr Form-B of the AnMxure to tha Ru~. · 

1) Rauarch & Devaloprnent(R & D) 
. . . 

a) Specific area In Whlcli R & 0 carried by_ the Company: NU 

b) Bene1lb derived as_ a result·of the above R & D: Nil 

c) Futufe plan of Action: ·Nil 
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d) Expendltu,.. o.i R & 0 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Capital NIL. 

Revenue ol NIL 

Total NIL 

Total R & D expenditure as a percentaoe of Total TulllO'o'ef .. NIL 

2) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTK>N, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION 

a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: Nil 

b) Benefits derived as a result ol the above ell'orts e. g. product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development, import substitution etc: Nil 

.. 
c) In case of imported technology (lmpolt&d' during the last 5 year reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year)- Nil 

3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

II. Activities relating to e:w::port, iOitiatives taken to increase export, development of new export markets for 
products and services and export plans: Nil 

Value of Imports calculated on C.I.F. basis: 
(Rs. In Lakhsl 

Particulars For the Year ended 31.03.2021 
S<o<es& ... .,. 
Ca 'tal Goods 

Total 

Earnings In foreign exchange: 

Export of goods cak:ulated on FOB basis 

Place: Chandlgarh 
Dated: Sept•mber 04, 2021 

13.80 . ... 
18.3.4 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Gklblil economic rwMw 
The global economy reported a dlt1!f0Wlh or 3.5% in 2020 compared to 2.9% In 2019, the >Mnl contracllon since 
World War II, on account of the outbreak of the novel corona virus. The consequent collapse of the global eoonomy had 
an adverse etrect on consumer consumption ~a range of sectors. 

' arowth ..,., lfve "'"~ - 2016 

['=~· 3.1 

(Source. IMF, E. E.stim8ted) 

Outlook 

2017 2018 2019 2020 

3.8 3.6 2.9 (3.5) 

The global economy is projected to grow by 5.5% in 2021 largely due to the successful roll-out of vaccines across the 
globe, coupled with additional policy support in the large economies. (Sourt:e: IMF) 

Indian economic review 
The Indian government announced ~ complete lockdat<'n in public movement and economic activity from the third week 
of March 2020. This had a severe Impact on the Indian economy during the first quarter of the year under review, which 
de-grew 23.9 per cent: the. sharpest de-growth experienced by the countly since lhe index was recorded. 

India's relief consumption reported a recovery following the lifting of social distancing controls. A number of sectors In 
India - real eslate, steel, .cement, home building products and consumer durables, among others - reported appreciable 
growth. The result is that India de-g~ew at an improved 7.5 per cent in the July-September quarter and reported 0.4 per 
cent growth In the October-December quarter and a 1.6% growth l_n the last quarter of the year under review. 

The result is that India's GOP coi-ttracted 7.3% during 2020-21, largely on account of the sharp depredation of the first 
quarters. 

The Indian government moved y.-ith speed to arrest the spread of the pandemic, providing its health care sector 
adequate time to strength~ safegUards, The resuH is that India escaped 'Nith a relatively low pandeOlic impact given its 
large population; by the dose of 2020-21, the number of recorded infected cases and fataUtles had declined 
substantiaDy as a per cent of the overaU populallon. 

India's manufacWrlng sector accounted for"17 .4% (estimated) share in GOP after a reduction of 1010 basis points than 
last year's 27.5% share. · 

India began to report Improving Goods and Services Tax (GST) collectiOns month-on-month fOllowing the relaxallon of 
the lodcdawn. 

The per capita ncome was. estrnated to have declined by 5% from Rs 1.35 lakh In 2019-20 to Rs 1.27 lakh in 2020-21. 
A sharp slowdown in economic growth and a surge in inflation reflected on the country's currency rate; the Indian rupee 
.emerged as one of the worst perlormers among Asian peers, marked by a depreciation of nearty 2.83% in 2020 from 
Rs 71.28 toRs 73.30 !evels before recovering towards the dose of the financial year. · 

India jumped.14 places to 63 in the 2020 Wor10 Bank's Ease· or Doing Business ranking and Is the only country in the 
emerging ri-larl(et basket that received positive FPls of $23.6 bUIIon In 2020. ranking eighth among. the world's top stock 
mmets with en ':"~P of $2.5 trlUion In 2020. 

. . 
The government sustained a number of econOmic reforms to. revive investor sentiment... The government initiated 
structural ref01ms in agriculture, labour laws and medlum-~all enterprise segments. The labOur reforms were Intended 
to benefit MSMEs inaease employment enhance labour producti0ty and wages. 

India extended the Partial Credit Guarantee Scheme by relaxing the criteria and allowing state-owned lenders mom 
time to purchase liabiUUes of shadow banks. 
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. " 
Under the Rs 45,000-crote partial_credit guarantee scheme, aMOUnced as a part ol the Atmanirbhar Bharat pad<age, 
three additional months were given to banks to purchase the portfolio of non-banking financial coinpanles.· 

The government approved amendments tq the Essential Commodities Act and brought an· on:linance to anow farmers 
to sell their crop to anyone: the changes to the Essential Commodities Act, 1955. Is intended to 'deregulate' agricutturnl 
commodities (cereals, pulses, oilseeds, edible oils, onions and potatoes from stock limits). The government approved 
the Farming Produce Trade and Commerce (Promotion an-d Fadlitatioo) Ordinance, 2020, to ensure barrler-free trnde 
in agriculture produce. 

' . The Government rela)(ed foreign direct investment (FDI) O'?"ffiS for sect01~ like defence, coat mining, conlmct 
manufacturing and single-brand retaU trading. 

The Union Cabinet approved the production-linked incentive (Pll) scheme for 10 sectors: pharmaceuticals, 
automobiles and auto components, telecom and networidng products. advanced chemistry cen batteries, textile, food 
products, solar modules, white goods, and specialty steel. These incentives could attract investments in modem 
technology, catalysing India's ,ioumey towards becoming a global player. 

OuUook 
The second wave of the pandemic affected the country's recovery in the first quarter of 2021-22. 
The Indian economy is projected to grow by less than 10% in FY22. 

Global tert11e and apparel Industry Overview 
The global textile market size was projected at USD 1000.3 billion in 2020 and is further anticipated to grow at a CAGR 
of4.4% between 2021 and 2028. GroWth of the a-commerce platforms end rising demand for apparel from the fashion 
Industry are demand drivers behind this projection. 

The three principles on which the textile industry works are designing, production and distribution of different nexible 
materials like clothing end yam. A wide range of fll'lished and semi-finished goods in clothing, bedding, medical, 
apparel and other accessories are processed through actlvttles SUCh as knitting, CI'Odletlng and weaving, among 
others. : · 

The United States is anticipatedty lh8 largest. textile marker In the North American region. II is one of the largest 
producers and exporters of raw cotton In the c:onllnent. Furthennore, the country Is a top Importer of ra~ textiles. 

An increasing trend of smart textiles has been witnessed in the market thai uses optical fibers, melels end Various 
conductive polymers to emerge as environment-friendly. This is expected to assist In identifying and reacting to a 
number of physical stimuli such as mechanical, lhermal or chemical end electric sources. A growth in consumer 
preference towards sustainable products is prompting textile companies to restructure their business. 

The Covid-19 outbreak has boon a major restraint to the textiles end apparof mart.et Global trade was restricted due to 
dedine in textile product consumption and disrupted supply chains amid imposed lockdown, which has impacted the 
market negatively. However, the textile end apparel industry is anUcipated to record a recovery following government 
supPOrt an.d inanaslng public awaren~s In tenns of eft'ectlve precautions. 

The fashion segment accounted for thfi: la'rgest share in textile market which was more than 74% of the global revenue 
share in 2020 and due to lhe increasWlg consumer spending on clothing and apparel. Ac:lditionaly, higher demand for 
crease-free suiting end shirting fabrics, as weU as quaUty dyed end printed fabrics around the 'MJrid, Is entldpetod to 
drive the global market ~emend for textiles from 2021 to 2028. 

All Increase In demand 101" formal and casual -wear end other fashionable clothing among en age groups of the global 
population is the major growth dtiYing factor !Of the market Moreover, increasing population and urbanization in the 
emerging economies of India, Bangladesh, Vietnam, Brazil and othe~ are likely to catalyse the demand for clothing 
and apparel. 

The demand lor lextiles in the technical segment is anticipated to rise ala significant 3.7% over the next eight years 
due to high-performance properties and end-user applications . .lncreasjng applications In construction, transportation, 
medical and prolective clothing have strengthened the use of textiles. 

The use of textiles in different areas.of a household is one of the most' prominent demand drivers for the sector. It 
includes bedding, upholstery, carpels, kitchen cloths, towel and others. Moreover, high consuming natural fibres such 
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as linen and cotton along with synthetic fibers are used for manufacturing household textiles and are further propelling 
the growth of the ma"'=el · 
(Source: Gran<Mewresearch) 

Indian textile and apparel Industry overview 
The Indian textile and apparel industry is estimated to have declined from USD 106 billion in 2019-20 to USD 75 billion 
in 2020-21, 'Nitnesslng a 30% decline in its market size. The textile sector of India is one ot the oldest industries in the 
Indian economy, which goes back several centuries from the preSent. Moreover, the market is expected to recover and 
grow at a CAGR of 10% between'lhe time spanning 2019·20 to.2025-26.to reach a market Wtue of USD 190 billion by 
2025-26. Applirel constitutes -73% share of the total textiles and apparel market in the country. 

The industry is diversified, with hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sedan~ at one end of the spectrum. while the 
capital-intensive sophisticated mills sector is on the other end. ·The decenttalised power lOoms/hosiery and knitting 
sector forms the largest component in the textiles sectOf. The textiles industry is one ol·the most unique industries due 
to its dose linkage to the agrk:ultural sectOf {!Of raw materials such as cottoo) and due' to the ancient culture and 
traditions ol the country in terms of textiles. This sector has a capacity to produce wide variety of products suitablo !Of 
different market segments, both within India and across the wor1d. · 

The textiles sector has approximately 4.5 crore employed 'NOI'kers. In terms of production, cottoo is expected to have 
reached 36 million bales and in terms of consumption, the number is anticipated to reach 114 miUion bales in FY21, a 
13% growth over FV20. 

The textiles sectOf recorded 8ppreciable growth in the last nve years. The industry {including dyed and printed) 
attracted a total Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) of USD 3.68 b~lioo from ApOI 2000 to December 2020. The sales ol 
kids wear and casual wear recovered laster, while ethnic wear and formal wear were the most affected. 

Indian textiles and apparel industry exports and imports 
India's textiles and apparel exports. declined from USD 33.5 billion In 2019-20 to an estimated USD 28.4 billion market 
size in 2020-21. Due to the Impact of Covid-19, India's exports are expected to fall around 15% to reach US$ 28.4 
biUion in 2020-21. 'The country's exports in this sector are further anticipated to rise.to USD 65 billion by 2025-26. 
recording a CAGR growth of 11 "-: 

The country's textile and· apparel sector witnessed a decline In Its Imports from USD 8.6 biUion In 2019-20 to an 
estimated USD 5.6 billion in 2020-21. Moreover, the imports ol this sector are anticipated to grow ala CAGR of 10"4 
and reach USD 15.2 billion by 2025-26. 

Covld-191mpect on the textiles and apparallndustry 
The second wave of Covid-19 had a less severe Impact on the textile$ and apparel induStry than the first wave. A 
disruption was seen in supply chains as there· were partial loddowns imposed in major textile ht,~bs like Surat. 
ludhlana, Tirupur and Bhllwara, leading to a shortage of f<roH material inputs (Y{Im and fabric). Even ~ough the cost of 
raw material increased. the final product rice did not exhibit a sharp rise. This supply chain disruption could lead to a 
20-30% year~year reduction in topline in 01 FY22. 

ManufBCturing shutdown: The Industry went t~gh a complete shutdown lor around 2-3 monthS (01 FY21), barring a 
few manufacturers IMlo were allowed to function as· they utilised their production systems for PPE manufacturing. 
However, most of the units operated at sub-optimal utilization levels !Of next several months, which led to a decline in 
the Industry's revenues. 

Suspended logistics: Disruption in the logistics sector and freezing of external trade caused due to the pandemic had a 
similar effeCt on the entire value chain. The counl!y's net trade In the months of Apn1 and May 2020 were estimated to 
be SO% lower. month-on-month compared to that in April end May 2019. 

CanceUitd otders: Due to the uncertainty spread across-the mar1<el the international and domestic buyers cancelled or 
suspended their ~ers, adding to the woes of the induslry. · 

Decline in physical rota// sales: Lockdown restrictions across the nation resulted in a dedine in the retail sales of 
apparel lor at least the first half ol the financial year. Even the festive and wedding season sales were impacted 
considerably. · 
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Emergence of new consvmer trends: The country's &-commerce sale at goods and apparel saw a sharp rise In 2020 
the credit of which largely goes to an increased marXet. WOf'k-From-Home drovt1 the demand for casual wear apparel 
over formals. (Sourc&: Maier Vlctomo, aepdndia.com) 

Global cotton yam maril;et overview • 
The global cotton yam market was valued at USO 74,380 miHion in 202o and is anticipated to reach a value of USD 
95,530 million by the end of 2026, growing at a CAGR of 3.6% during this time span. China and India are the principal 
consumption regions of cotton yam due to an increasing demand from downstream applications. In 2020, these regions 
occupied -65% of the total consumption volume across the globe. With wide applications of cotton yam, demand from 
downstraam applications could increase in the upcoming years. (Source: Wicz) 

For 2020. ·the worldwide raw cotton market was worth $38.54 billion and projected to reach $46.56 billion by 2027, a 
compound annual growth ol2.74 per cent from 2020 to 2027.\ndia is the largest producer of cotton in the world, China, 
Pakistan and United States being the other major producers. Roughly ooe in five Cotton garments sold globally contains 
cotton or yam from Xinjiang. Of the total cotton produced in China. 86 per cent is from Xinjiang. This amounts 10 70 per 
cent of all cotton yam in China, the largest share in its yarn exports. China and India have been the core cotton 
consumers for decades. The domestic consumption of cotton also explains why India is not the largest exporter of 
cotton. despite being its largest p'roduCer. The core importers arc China. Bangladesh, Vietnam. Turkey and Pakistan. 
China's cotton exports in 2019 were $14.1 bn, equaling 26.6 per cent of total global exports, while India contributed 
11.8 per cent, worth S6.3 billion and tess than half of China's worldwide export. a gap India must aim to fill. {Source: 
wion.ews.com) 

Global spinning Industry overview 
The wor1dwide demand lot textile y3m Is valued at USD 11.9 billion in 2019. Growing at a CAGR of 4% between the 
periods of 2020 to 202£, the global yam market is expected to reach USD 16 billion. Fabric being a basic necessity, 
the demand lot yam is expected to increase With' a growing global population. The global population stands at 7.9 
billion in the year 2021. By 2057, the global population Is expected to reach 10 billion. As of 2020, China is the largest 
textile producing country, followed by India and USA. The rapid growth of the textile industry in the APAC region is 
largely attributed to the higher population. (Source: Glob8/newswire, Worldometers) 

Indian spinning industry overview ~ 
India is expected to have produced 4,762 million kg of yam in the year 2020-21, as against 5,713 million kg in 2019-20. 
This fall in production can be attributed to the COVID-19 pandemic which caused a nationwide nduslriallockdown, 
halting production from 25., March 2020 to 8., June 2020 coupled with weakening domestic and global demand. The 
revenue of Indian conon spinners is expected to decline 25-30% year-on-year in 2020-21. The recovery was slow due 
to sluggish domestic demand. After China, India is the second largest exporter of yam, with an export value of USD 
3.69 billion, accounting for 14% of the global mar1o;et share. 
(Source: AEPCindia.c:om, Business Standard, Statists) 

Drivers of India's textl~ industry 
Mask. and PPE kits: The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in the mass production of masks and PPE kits, which is said 
to be an effe~e precaution against tho virus. 

Rising urbanisation: The urban population of India, which was at 34% in 2020, Is set to Increase to 39% In 2036. 
Majority of this population is young, who like to tty the latest fashioo trends, leading to a high demand in the textile 
industry. 

Growing population: India is set to oV6rtake China as the most populous country by 2025. The demand for clothes is 
expected 10 rise along with the growing population as clothing is a basic necessity. 

Growing presence of ecommerce: The. pandemic has forced people stay in their homes and use ecommerce platforms 
for shopping. This has allowed the textile market to continue business, without having rustomers to physiclllly visit the 

""'•· 
Complete value chain: For the textile industry, India Is a very luaative mar1o;et as the enUre value chain In present within 
lhe country right from abundant ovaUapility of raw materials and cheap labour to a vast and diverse mar1o;et for selling 
products. · 
(Source: Statislictimes.com, fashionatingworld.com, The W1nr, maiei.vidomo) 
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GowmrMnt Initiatives 

The Indian government came up with a number_ of export promotion policies fOI'" the textiles and apparel sector. 
Moreo\lef, II has also allowed 100% FOI into the sector under tho automatic route. 

In 202~21. the UK was India's fourteenth largest trading partner, accounting for US$ 8.7 billion in exports and US$ 6.7 
bil6on in imports. In March 2021, the Ministry of Textiles favoured limited deal for the lndia·UK free trade agreement 
that couklad as a major boost fOl' the" garments sector. 

A memorandum of understanding (MoU) was signed by the Ministry of Agriculture and Farmer's Welfare with the 
Central Silk Board, under the Ministry of Textiles, on ·a convergenCe model to implement agro-forestry in the silk sector. 

In September 2020, the Union Cabinet approved the signing of an MOU between textile committee, India and M/s 
Nissenken Quality Evaluation Centre, Japan, for improving the quality and t6sung Indian textiles and clothing for the 
Japanese marXet. This pact between the two countries oo cooperation in textiles will help lhe Indian exporters to meet 
requirements of the Japanese importers as per the latte(stechnical regulations. 

Under the Union Budget 2020-21, a National Technical Textiles Mission Is propOsed for a period from 2020-21 to 2023-
24 at an estimated ouUay of Rs. 1,480 crore (USD 211.76 million). 

In order to support the handloom and handicrafts sector, the central government has taken steps to get 
weavers/artisans onboard on the Government e·MarXetpjace (GeM) and provide a wider marXet, enabling them to sell 
their products directly to various government departments end organisations. As of December 31, 2020. 1,71,167 
weavers/artisanslhand1oom entitles have been registered on the GeM portal. (Sourco: IBEF) 

THE COMPANY 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

A strong internal control is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a well established framewor1o; of internal 
control In el areas of Its operations, induding suitable m-onitoring procedures, competent end quaUfled personnel. The 
Internal Audit department also assesses the opportun-ities for improvement in business processes, systems and 
controls, provides recommend<~llons, designed to add value to the Company. In addition to statutory audit, the financial 
controts of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who report their findings to the Audit 
Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control 
system and suggests furthering strengthening the same,., so required. The Committee meets to review the progress of 
the internal audit initiatives, significant audit observations, planning ahd implementation of follow up action required. 
The Company conduds its business with jntegrity and high standard of ethical behavior and in compliance with the 
applicable laws and regulaUons that govern its business. 

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACES 
The Company has zero tolerance fOf sexual harassment at worXplace end has adopted a Polley on Preventlon of 
Sexual Harassment at Workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Preventlon, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Management of the Company has also constituted an Internal 
Complaints Committee at its worXplaces to consider and redress the complaints of Sexual Harassment. During the year 
un?er review, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment. 

RISKS & CONCERNS 
Business risks exist for every Company having national and lntemallonal exposure. Your Company also faces some 
suCh risks, the key ones are unfavorable raw material price, financial & liquidity & unexpected changes in regulatory 
framewori:.. To ensure long-term success, it is therefore essential that risks be effectively Identified, analyzed and then 
mitigated by means of appropriate control measures. 

We have a comprehensive risk management system/policy in place, which enables us to assess. mitigate and to 
monitor the different risks exposed to the industry in which the Company operates and to take the appropriate action. 
where ever required. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES 
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The Company has health and WOitq)lace safety programs In place and has eslablished polkies and procedures aimed 
at ensuring compliance with applicable lawsllegislatlve req"ul.-ements. The Company believes that the health and safety 
of the worlters and the persons residing' in ttu~ vicinity of itS ;plants Is fundamental to the business. Commitment to the 
identifiC8tion and elimination or control of the 'Mlflolplace hatan:ls for protection of ells utmost importance. 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS . 
The permanent employee strength of Company as on Marcil 31, 2021 was Eighty Two. The Company recognizes the 
importanCe and contribution of Its human resources for its growth BOd development and is committed to the 
develOpment of its peop4e. The Company has been adopting methods and prnctices for Human Resources 
develOpment. With utmost respect to human values, the CompanY continues to develop its human resources, through 
appropriate trainings, workshops, ~nlleadership tectv:aiques and employee welfare activities at regular intervals. 

I I 

OlULOOK . 
Worid Health Organization (WHO) ~red outbreak of CorcnavinJs Disease (COVID·19) a global pandemic on March 
11, 2020. Consequent to this. the Government of India declared lockdown on March 24, 2020 and the operations of the 
Company Wflf8 temporarily suspended In compliance with the lockdown Instructions issued by the Central and Slate 
Governments. COVI0-19 has impacted the normal business operations of the Company by way of dosure/ lock down 
of production facilities, Interruption in supply of flfliShed goods, unavailability of personnel etc. during the lock-down 
period. However, production and supply of goods has been commenced May 04, 2020 after obtaining permissions from 
the appropriate govemmenlauthorttles:; · 

The Company h~s made detailed assessment· of its liquidity position for the next ye~r and the reaWerabilily and 
carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade receivables. Based on 
current indicat()(S of future economic CQflditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. 
The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to lnhe~nl uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential Mum 
impact of the COVI0-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these r&nancial 
statements. The Company Will continue to dosely monitor any material changes arising 'of future eoooomic conditions 
and impact oo its business. 

Detailed expl•n•tJon: 
Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group which 
hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the lisled entity, in the foonat prescribed In the relevant accounting standards for 
annual results. : NA 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
Statements In the Board's Report and·the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's objectives, 
expectations. or forecasts may be forward lOOking within the meaning of·appllcabte securities laws and regulations. 
Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factor1; that could influence the 
Company's operations include global ~ domestic demand and supply conditions affecting setting prices of finished 
goods, input avallabUity and yam prices in the domestic and overseas marl<ets, changes in government regulations, tax 
laws and economic developments. · 

Place: Chandlgarh 
Dated: ~ptember 06, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To tho Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hlsar Spinning Mills Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements. including a summary of signifteant accounting policies and 
other explanatory lnfonnation. 

In our opinion and to the best of our infonnalion and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the iriforrnation required by the C9f11panies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards presaibed under 
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affai~ of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2021, ils profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and ils cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in acco-rdance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities ior the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Ad and the Rules made thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have Obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our profeSsional judgment. were of most signifiCance in our audit 
of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. We have determined that there are 
no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
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Other Information :J 

The Company's Board of Director.; iS. responsible for the other infonnation. The other information comprises 
the information induded in the cOmpariy's·Annual Report, but does not indude the financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. The Company's Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor's report 

Our opinion on the financial statemel)ts dOes not cover the other information and we will not express any form 
of assyrance conclusion thereon. .. 

In connectiOn with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, Of otherwise 
appeais to be materially misstated. 

I 
When we read the Company's Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to the Company's Board of Directors and those charged with 
governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations. 

Responslbllltle~ o~ Management for the Financial St<Jtemcnts 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these .financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including· other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the l!CCOUnting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act ·read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includ.es maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in aCCOfdance with the provisions of. the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation arid maintEmance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statemen~. management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability ·to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operati~ns, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibll.ltles for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assur~nce, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, lhey could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in aCCOfdance with SAs, we exercise professiona.t judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ooe resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 6r the override of internal control. 

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audh procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

iii. Evaluate the appropriatene:;s of accounting policies. used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast signifteant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future· events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

v. Evaluate the overall presen~tion, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures. and whether the financial statements represe_ntthe underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them aU relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to be~r on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and 
are therefore the key audit matte'rs. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicilted in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest bel)_efits ~f such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 rthe Order·), issued by the Central 
Government of Indio in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
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2. As required by Section 143{3) of the Act. we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were ~ry for the purposes of o~r audil 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of. account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appearS from oui examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss Including Other.Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Chailges· in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreem~enl ~th the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 
2015, as amended. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2021 from being appointed as a dlrectOI" In te-nns of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the ad~uacy of the internal financial cootrols over financial reporting of the 
Company· with reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such 
cOntrols, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B" to this report. 

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directOf"S during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197. of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and accor;t;ting to the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in Its 
financial statements - Refer note no. 39 to the financial statements; 

il. The Company did not have any long-tenn contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there ~any material foreseeable losses; 

1,.r1.1 . 
' iii. There wero)., amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education end 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
Date: 29.06.2021 
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(Firm's Registration No. 000711N) 

(RUCHIR SINGLA) 
Partner 

Membership No. 519347 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to In paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report to tho Members of Hlsar Spinning Mills Limited of even date) 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, induding quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a program for the physical verification of fiXed asselS at periodic Intervals. In our 
opinion, the pertodic intervals are reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its fixed assets. No material diSCfepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the tiUe deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 
Company. 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable int6rvats by the management. 
The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not 
material. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, finns, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties cOvered in the (agister maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, 
paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not cipplicable. 

(hi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records. 
of the Company, the Company has not advanced any loans or made any investments or given any 
guarantees or provided any security during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(1v) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(vi) The Central Government lias not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. 

(vii) (a) 

(b) 

The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues induding provident fund, 
employees' state ii-lsurance, income-tax; sales-tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax. cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable 
to the Company, to the appropriate autholities. though there has been slight delay in few cases. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts outstanding as 
payable in respect of such statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of 
ITIOI'e than six months from the date they became payable. 

There are no dues of inCome tax or sales tax or service tax or goods and services tax or duty of 
customs or duty of excise which have not been deposited on account of any disPute: According to 
the infonnation and explanations given to us, tl:le due of value added tax, which has not been 
deposited on 31st March, 2021 on account of any dispute are as follows: 

Name of 
Statute 

the Nature of Amount (t) Amount Period to 
which the the Dues (Gross) Paid/ 

Haryana Value Value 
Added Tax Act, added tax 
2003 

adjusted amount 
undor relates 
Protest (t) 

3977731- 3977731- Assessment 
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Year 2012-
2013 

Forum where 
pending 

dispute 

Before the Joint Excise and 
Taxation Commissioner 
fAooeals), Harvana 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

(viii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or l>on"owing to a financial institution or bank. 
The Company does not have any loans or borrowing from Government during the year. The Company 
also does not have any outstanding debentures during the year. 

(ix) The Company has not raised a:ny moneys by way of initial public offer Of further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and fresh tefm loans during the year under review. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(x) To the best of our knowiedge and accordlng to the information and exptana~s given to us, no fraud by 
the Company or on the Company by tts officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the 
year .. 

(xi}_ In our opinion and according to th8 information and explanation given to us, the Company has paid/ 
provided manageriat remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) 'tn our opinion and according tO the information and explanations given to us, the Company Is not a 
Nldhl ~y. Acccwdingly. pSrngrnph 3(~;) of the Onle< Is not applk:able. 

(xiil) According to the Information and explanations gfven to us and based on our examination of the records 
· of the Company, aU transactions with the related parties are In compliance with Sections 1 n and 1 88 of 

the Ad where applicable end the details of such transactions have been disdosed In the Anancial 
Statements etc., as required by the applicable acoounting standards. 

(xiv) The. Company has not made any preferential anotment or private placement of shares or fuUy or parUy 
convertible debentures during the year under re~. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected to its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not appllcab'e. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 
1934. 

Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
Date: 29.06.2021 

,, 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to In paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report to the Members of Hlsar Spinning Mills Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial C_ontrols under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"') 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements 
of Hlsar Spinning Mills limited rthe Company") as of 31st March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ·Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoontants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed iisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls oyer financial reporting with reference to these 
financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to the Financial 
Statements 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to the financial statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of the financial statements fOI' external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to the 
financial statements indudes those ~ides and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect tne transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable asSurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directO~ of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Fli1anclal Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to These 
Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations Ot internal financial controls. over financial reporting with reference to these 
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements 
to future periods are subject to the risk. that the internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or prOcedures may deteriornte. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has, in atl material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, 
based on the internal control over 'financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components· of internal cofitrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
Date: 29.06.2021 
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Partner 
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Note No. 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Capilal ~-In-progress 
(c) Fin.ancial Assets 

(I) Other flnancialauets 
(d) Deferred lax assets (net) 
(e) Otllor non-o.Nrent asset$ 

Cunwnt assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cosh equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances othef" Chan (ii) above 
(lv) Other financial assets 

(c) Current TaK Assets (Net) 
(d) Other Cl.lrrent assets 
(e) Non-current assets danified as held 101'" sale 

TotaiAlt..U 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Eqully Share capital 
(b) Otl'ler Equity 

UABILITIES 
Non.c:urrent llabllhlaa 

3 

• 
5 
6 
7 

6 

• ,. 
" 12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(il Borrowings 18 
(ll) Other flnandalllabllltles 19 

{b) Other non-currenlliubilicios 20 

Cun-.nt \labllltlaa 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(I) BorTowings 21 
(II) Trade Peyables:- 22 

(A) cotnl outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises: and 
(B) total outsWnding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small e-nterprises 

(Iii) Other linanei&L linbilities 23 
(b) Other current Liabilities 2-4 
(c) Provisions 25 
(d) Current Tax Liabllitloa (Net) 26 

Total Equity and LlabUltles 

Sue accompenyu-.g noteslo lhalinancial slalaments 1 • 45 

In terms of our report on ~:ven date atl::lched 

lor ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES 
Chana-red Aceoonl::lnts 

Firm's Regis1n11ion No. 000711N 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 29.06.2021 

(RUCHIR SINGLAl 
Penner 

Membership No. 519347 

52 

~ 
t In lakhs 

Ai et31.03.2021 .... 81 31.032020 

271.13 341.47 

22.31 50.« 
95.69 125.12 

0.06 389.39 560 522.83 

778.89 666.95 

301.73 223.25 
$4.45 1213.59 

145.01 208.07 
19.67 8.68· 

8.31 7.68 
118.39 91.02 .... 

1426.65 0.30 1332.74 

1816.04 1855.37 

373.50 373.50 
909.89 1283.39 76-4.55 1138.05 

20.37 62.69 
3.81 26.45 
3.66 27.84 23.27 112.41 

103.58 91.11 

3.65 9.40 

122.27 152.14 

160.59 224.64 
106.11 125.98 

6.44 1.64 
2.17 504.81 605.11 

1818.0. 1855.!17 

For and on behalf olli'MII Board of Dlreetot"l of 
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 

OIN-00192688 

(SHARAO GOEL) 
Chief Flru~ndal Oflk:er 

(NIKHIL GOELl 
Director 

OIN-01741446 

(NIKITA SINGLA) 
Company Secretary 

(NAVEEN KANSAL) 
Chief Executive Officer 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loaa for the y.ar ended 31at March 2021 

P11111CUIII,-. 

Revenue From operations 
Other Income · 

~otallncome 

EXPENSES 
Cost of materials consumed 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of flnish&d 
goods and ~-in-progress 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation expense 
Other expenses 

Total axpensea 

Profit before tax 
Tax expense: 
- Current tax 
- Adjustment of tax relating to ear1ier 

ooriods 
• Deferred tax 

Profit for the ve11r 

Other Comprehenalve Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to 
orotit or loss: 
Remeasurements of the defined 
benefit plans 
Income tax relating to items that will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss. 
Total Other Comprehenatve 
Income/ H Expenae 
Total Comprehanalve Income for 
the year 

Eamlnga per equity ahara: 
(Nominal value of equity share· f 101·) 
Basic (tl 
Diluted (tl 

Note No. 

27 
28 

29 
30 
31 

32 
33 
34 
35 

36 

37 

See accompanying notes to the 1 • 45 
financial statements 

In terms of our report on even date attached 

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & "ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm"s Registration No. 000711 N 

Piece: Chandigarh 
Date: 29.06.2021 

{RUCHIR SINGLAl 
Partner 

Membership No. 519347 

~ In takhs 
For the y.ar 

ended 31.03:2021 
For the year 

ended 31.03.2020 
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33.66 
-5.14 

29.23 

2870.72 
41.62 

2912.34 

1630.63 
2.57 

-60.35 

219.27 
8.49 

78.22 
828.35 

2707.38 

204.96 

74.63 
1.70 

57.75 ___ ,.2., .... 

147.21 

·2.50 

0.63 

-1.87 

145.34 

3.94 
3.94 

3141.49 
22.32 

3163.81 

1793.10 

18.24 

183.50 
22.03 

105.75 
763.83 

2886.45 

2n.Je 

79.31 

198.05 

0.92 

-o.26 

0.66 

198.71 

5.30 
5.30 

For arid on behalf of the Board of Dlr&Ctors of 
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 

DIN-00192888 

{NIKHIL GOEL) 
Dir&Ctor 

OIN-Q1741446 

(SHARAO GOEL) (NIKITA SINGLA) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

(NAVE EN KANSAL) 
Chief Executive Officer 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2021 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACnvmes 

Proftt befON tax 
Adjustments for. 
Depreciation expense 
Net loss/(-) gain on dl&posal of property, plant and equipment 
Impairment loss on recognition on non-eumtnt assets at the lower of their 
canytng amount and fair value..._ coats to MU 
Goverl'ln1enl gn~nt relating to EPCG Scheme 
Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment 
Fair value lo&sl (-)gain on r~nancial instruments at FVTPL 
Net lou/ (-) gain on fontlgn currency tranaactions and translation 
ProYbion fO( intorest written back 
Interest on shortfalln payment of advaoco Income tax wrtnen back 
OefemKI proc:eulng foes 
Interest Income 
Finance coats 

Operating profit before working Cllpltal·chan~a 

Changes In working capltsl: 
A,dlustms:ntl for dftm1!DW (.) !rts';m'l' In gpt:m!loo usel§'­
lnventonos 
Tntde receivables 
Other flnanc:lal assets (current) 
Other financial assets (non-current) 
Other assets (current) 
Other assets (non-current) 

A,dlu§I!DfrOts for lnqenseJ (-) deqen1ft In gocmtjna lleb!lities·-
Trade payables 
Other financial llab!Uties (current) 
Other flnancialllabiutles (non.oJrrent) 
Other !labilities (C\Jl'TOOI) 
Provisions (current) 
Cash generated ftom operations 
Income taxes paid (net of refund) 
Nat cash flows from/(-) u-d In operating actt'ltlles 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVTnES 

Putehase of property. plant and equipment (including capital wont-in-. 

"""'"'") Proceeds from disposaL of property. plnnt and equipment 

Bank balnns;s;t ngt cons!derm! ps ai!!h and Cftsh eauiyt!kmts· 
(-) Increase/ decrease in deposiiS with more than twelve months maturlty 
(pledged with banks towards margin against ban'k guarantees) 
(-) Increase/ dacrease in deposits with original maturity more than twelve 
months but remaining maturity ol less than twelve months (pledged With 
banks towards margin against bank guar11ntees) 
(-) lncreesol docrease In deposlll with original maturity more than three 
months bu1 remaining maturity of less than twelve months 

Interest received 

Nat c .. h flows froml (-) used In lnveaUng activities 
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~ 
t In lalchs 

FM ... FMtho 
year ended year ended 
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

204.8& 2n.Je 

78.22 105.75 
0.09 ·2.81 

3.36 

..... 5.22 ·20.95 
-0.04 -0.04 
-0.06 1.33 
0.3< .0.75 

-29.39 
.0.12 
0.06 0.06 

-9.10 -10.72 
8.49 22.03 

208.23 374.82 

-111.94 46.77 
-78.62 16.06 

-1.55 -0.30 
0.00 0.00 

-27.40 -28.36 
5.71 -2.57 

-35.62 73.81 
20.76 71.52 

-22.6<4 -73.77 
5.78 -23.92 
2.10 -0.88 

-35.39 452.98 
-26.05 -80.29 .. , ..... 372.07 

-7.88 -34.13 

0.21 4.58 

18.82 0.88 

-17.01 0.00 

80.07 -208.07 

8.82 7.94 

83.03 -229.00 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Particulars 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from borrowings (non<t.Jrrent) 
Repayment of borrowings (non-current) 
Proceeds from borrowings (current) (net) 
Repayment of borrowings (current) (net) 

Finance costs paid (net of RTUFS subsidy and interest subvention for 
MSMEs) 

Net cash flows from/ (-) used In financing activities 

Net Increase/(-) decrease In cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 
Balances wilh Banks 
• In current accounts 

Cash on hand 

Notes: 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

-97.25 
12.47 

-8.95 

-93.73 

-72.14 

126.59 

54.45 

50.27 
4.18 

54.45 

~inlakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

-95.84 
0.00 

·29.51 
-21.22 

·146.57 

-2.90 

129.49 

126.59 

125.30 
1.29 

126.59 

1. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accon:lance with 'Indirect Method' as set out in Indian 
Accounting Standard {lnd AS) - .7 'Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with reievant rules Issued thereunder. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS UMITED 

2. Changes in llablllty arising from financing acttvitles.: 

Particulars 

Opening balance of borrowings 

Borrn!Mnos <non-currentl 
• T enn loans (lndudlng current maturities) 
- Other long-term borrowings {including current maturities) 

Borrowings (current) 
Caah Flows 
proceeds trom bonpwioos tnpn-currenn 

-Term Loans 
- Other kKlg-term borrowings 

Reoayment of borrowlnos fnon-wrreon 
-Term Loans 
- Other long-term borrowings 

Increase/(-) decrease in borrowings (current) 
Effective rate of Interest adjustment 
Closing balance of borrowings 
Borrowings fnon-currentl 

-Term Loans (induding current maturities) 
-Other loog-term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Borrowinos fcurrenn 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (Note 1 - 45) 

In terms of our report on even date attached 

~ 
tin lakhs 

Fo<the For the 
year ended year ended 
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

154.06 246.10 
4.77 7.99 

91.11 120.62 

o:oo 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

93.73 92.62 
3.52 3.22 

12.47 -29.51 
0.38 0.58 

60.71 154.06 
1.25 4.77 

103.58 91.11 

fOf ROMESH K AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accol.lntanls 

Firm's Registration No. 000711N 

' -For and on behalf of the Board of DireCtors of 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 29.06.2021 

(RUCHlR SINGLA) 
Partner 

Membership No. 51934 

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Difector 
DlN-00192888 

(NIKHIL GOEL) 
Director 

OIN-01741446 

(SHARAD GOEL) 
Chief Financial Officer 

(NIKIT A SINGLA) 
Company Secretary 
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Chief Executive Officer 
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Balance at . lhe beginning of the 
reporting period 
Changflll in oquiCy &hare c8pltal ~ng 
the year 
Balance a! the end ol the 'lllponing 

""""' 
B. Other Equity 

Partlcula"' 

Currant reporting period ... ~ •• ""' beginning "' ""' rei)Orting period Q ~~ 01.04.2020 
Profit lor the year 

"""'' Comp<et>enaive lrn::ome/(-) 
E>tpense !Of the~- net ollncome ta• 
Total Coml)f'ehenstv. lrn::oma fOf the ,.., 
Balance -•t the end of the i-.portJng 
period •••• 31.03.2021 

P111vloua reporting period 
Balance at the beQinning of the 
reporti"Q period as at 01.04.2019 
Prof1t for the )'Oaf 

Other COmprehensive locome/1-) 
E~se for the year, ne! of income laX 

,. .. 
S.lanc:a at the and of the reponing 

'"'"od •••• 31.03.2020 

See accompanying nOteto to !he financial 
1tatements (Nole 1 • 45) 

. 
tn terms o1 our report on liven dalfl anadlfld 

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES 
Charttlflld Account11nt1 

Flrm'1 Reglslnl!lon No. 0007ttN 

Plllce: Chandlgam 
Date : 29.06.2021 

(RUCHIR SINGI.A) 
Partner 

Mflmbflr$hip No. 519347 

tIn lakhs .... 
31.03.2021 

.... 
31.03.2020 

Number of """"'"' Number of· """"'"' ..... M $hllr$$ 

3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

. 
3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

tIn lakha 
Equity Rna....,. and Su "' <=<~mponent Capital R.talned Total 

ofc:ompound Redemption Elomlnga 
nrn~nclal ....... 

lnauumants 

17.55 6500 682.00 764.55 

147,21, 147.21 
-1.87 -1.87 

145.34 145.34 

17.55 85.00 827.34 m.av 

17.55 65.00 483.29 565.64 

198.05 198.05 
0.66 0.66 

181.71 198.71 

17.55 65.00 642.00 764.55 

For and on behal1 o1 the so.rd of OlrfiC""'- o1 
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 
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(ANURAG GUPTA) 
~naglng Director 
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(NIKHIL GOEL) 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 

1. Corporate and General Information 
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as •the Company") Is a Public Limited Company 
domiciled in India 'With its registered office situated at Village & Post Dabra, Hisar ·125005, Haryana. 
The Company has been inCOfJ)OI'3ted under the provisions of Indian Co01panles Ad. and Its equity 
shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Limited in India. Corporate identifw;ation 
number of the Company is L 17112HR1992PLC031621 and the Company is engaged in the business 

of manufacturing and sale of cotton yam blended. 

The financial statements were authorised for Issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 29th June, 

2021. 

2. Significant accounting policies 
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements 
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies ACt, 2013 ("the Acn 
read with the Gompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant 
provisions of the Act. · 

(b) Basis of measurement of financial statements 
The financial statemen~ have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following 
items: 

Defined benefit liabilities/ (assets) are measured at fair value of plan· assets less present value of 
defined benefit obligation. 

Certain financial assets and liabilities (induding derivative instruments) are measured at fair 
value. 

Other financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cosl 

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency 
The finar\cial statements are presented .in Indian Rupees ('INR'), which is also the Company's 
functional currency. All amo~nts have been rounded-off to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise 
indicated. 

(d) Uso of estimates and judgments 
The prep·aration of the financial statements in· conformity with lnd AS requires management to make 
estimates. judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgmentS and assumptions affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported Dmounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of 
contingent assets and ,liabilities at the date of the fina~ncial statements ·and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change .from period to period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in 
estimates are reflected in the_ financial statements in the period in which changes are made. 
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are 
known{ materialised. 
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(e) Current versus non..c:urrent classification 

All assets and. liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Division IJ of Sch~ule Ill to the Act. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or 
cash equivalents, the Company_ has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose or 
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current Yhlen it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

It is expected to be realised in, or Is intended to be sold or consumed In, the Company's nonnal 
operating cycle; · 

It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date: or 

It is Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for atleast12 months after the reporting date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are 
dassified as non:Current. 

Liabilities 

A liability is dassified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

It is expected to be settled'in the Company's normal operating cycle; 

It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded: 

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date: or 

The Company dqes not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporti_ng date. 

Current liabilities, indude current portion or non-current financial liabilities. All other _liabilities are 
classified as non-current. 

(f) Property, plant and 8qulpm~n.t 

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost 
less accumulated depredation and accumulated impainnent loss, if any. The- cost of an item of 
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises: 

its purchase price including import duties and non·rcfundable purchase taxes after deducting 
trade discounts and rebates. 

any attributable expenditure directly attributable for bringing an asset to the location and the 
working condition for its intended use and 
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the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located. the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as 
a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period. 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property, Plant ahd Equipment 
recognised as on 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and use that carrying value as its deemed rost aS on transition date. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance 
sheet date is dassified as capital advances under the head "Other non~urrent assets• and the cost of 
assets not put to use before such date are disdosed ~nder "Capital work-in-progress·. 

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will now to the Company and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in net profit in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related ·accumulated depreciation are 
eliminated from the financial statements upo~ sale ·or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at 
the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on diminishing balance method 
('Mitten down value method) in the manner and over the useful life of the assets prescribed under Part 
'C' of Schedule II to the Act except for certain items of p!E~nt and equipment having gross carrying 
amount oft 12.42 Lakhs (previous year { 12.42 Laki•::.} Ci•·•d of building tiav;ng g:oss can)'iiig amOOiit 
oft 4.21 Lakhs (p~evious year~ 2.18 Lakhs) where the management estimates the life as 3 and 5 
years respectively'based on in\emal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by 
external valuers. The management believes that the useful life of 3 and 5 yeais respectively for the 
said assets best represent the . period over which the inanagement expects to consume future 
economic benefits embodied in these assets through its use. Hence the useful life of these assets is 
different from the useful life as prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule ll to the Act. · 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

(g) Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered 
primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. 

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of·their carrying amount' and fair value less costs to 
sell. An impainnent loss is recognised for any initial or ·subsequent Write-down of the asset to fair value 
less coSts to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases 'in fair value less costs to sell of 
an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairrne11t loss previously recognised. A gain or loss 
not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of 
de-recognition. · 

Once assets classified as held for sale, then property, plant and equipment are no longer required to 
be depredated. 
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(h) Impairment of assets 
l. Financial assets . . 

The Company recognisf!S loss allowances using the Expected Credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets v.tllch are not fair valued through profit or loss. 

Loss allowance for trade. receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an 
amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured 
at an amount equal to the 12·months ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk from initial recognition in which case thOse are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of 
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date to the amount that Is required to be recognised is recognised as an Impairment gain or IQSs 
in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

II. Non-financial assets 
The Company's non·financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of Impairment. If any 
such indication exlsts •. thcn the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, 
assets that do not generate independent Cash innows are grouped together Into cash-generating 
units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash lnnows 
that are largely independent of the cash innows of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an Individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its 
fair value 'teSs costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that renects current mark.et assessments of 
the time value of r:noney and the risks speciAc to the CGU (or the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the ca~ng amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment. losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the assets of f!le CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised In prior periods (if any), the 
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determ_ine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent 
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment toss had been recognised. 

(i) Inventories 
Inventories (other than saleable waste) have been valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 
However, raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of Inventories are not written 
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at 
or above cost. 

The cost of inventories compriSe all costs of purchase, costs of conversion arid other costs incurred in 
bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition: where the costs of purchase of 
inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently 
recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, 
rebates and other similar items are deducted iri determining the costs of purchase. The cost in respect 
of different classifications of inventories is computed as under: 
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in case of raw materials. stock-in-trade, ·stores and spare-parts etc. at first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost 
method plus direct expenses. 

in case of work-in-progress at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus 
appropriate portion of conversion cost and other overheads incurred depending upon the stage of 
completion. 

in case of finished goods at raw material cost (detennlned On FIFO cost method) plus conversion 
cost, packing cost and other overheads incurred to bring the goods up to their present location 
and condition. 

Saleable waste has been valued at estimated net realisable value. 

Net realisable value is .the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and to make the sale. 

Provision for obsolete/ old inventories is made, wherever required. 

(j) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold performed in the ordinary course 
of business. If the receivable is expected to be collected within a period of 12 months or less from the 
reporting date (or in the nOrmal operating cycle of the business, if longer), they are classified as 
current assets otherwise as non-current assets. 

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant fin~ncing 
component in ac<;ordance with lnd AS 115 for pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. 

(k) Foreign currencY transactions 
The foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency. by 
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and 
the fOI'"eign currency at the date of the transaction. 

The foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate at the end of each reporting 
period. Non-monetary items' that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall be 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on the 
seWement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which 
they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements shall be 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

(I) Employee benefits 
I. Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided~ A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid e.g .. bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can 
be estimated reliably. 
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ii. Defined contribution planS 
For certain group of employees, employee benefit in the form of Provident fund, Employees State 

Insurance ContribUtion and Labour Welf8re fund are defined contribution plans. The Company 

has no obligation, other than the coritribution payable to the respective fund. The Company 

recognises contribution pa~ble to these funds/ schemes as an expense, when an employee 
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for Service received before 

the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution -already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme 

is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already 

paid exceeds the contribution due for services· received before the balance sheet date, then 
excess is recognised as an asset to the _extent that the pre-payment will lea<;~ to, for example, a 
reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

ill. Defined benefit plans 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
The Company provides foi gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan') 
covering eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to 
vested employees at retireinent, death. incapacitation or termination of employment. of an 
amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the 
Company. 

liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actUarial valuation, performed by an 
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The 
Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 
though a truSt fanned by ~ Company for the purpose. LIC administrate contributions and 
contributions are invested in the schemes as permitted by the laws of India. 

. ' 
The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an 
asset or liability. Remeasurcment, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the 
asset ceiling, exduding amounts induded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and 
the retum on plan assets (exduding amounts induded in net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspOnding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurement Is not recla~ified to profit or. loss In subsequent periods. 

lv. Compensated absences • 
Based on the leave rules of the Company. employeeS are not permitted to accumulate leave. Any 
unavailed privileged leave to the extent encashable Is paid to the employees and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. 
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(m} Revenue recognition 
I. Revenue from sale of goods 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Sales are 
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership, which coincide with transfer of 
controls of goods, are transferred to the buyer as per terms of contract and are recognised. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue is net or returns, trade discounts, goods and services tax and 
amount collected on behalf of third parties. 

The Company recognises revenue when tt)e amount of revenue can be measured reliabfy and it 
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to'the Company. 

II. Revenue from other than sale of goods 
Revenue (other than sale of goods) is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
E.xport incentives and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that 
the Company will comply with the conditions and the incentiv~sl subsidies will be received. 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable. 

(n) Borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of'transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently. measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method (EIR). Fees paid on the establishment of loan fadlities 
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the 
fadlity will be drawn -dO'Ml. 

(o) Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or prodUction of a qualifying asset 
are capttaliscd as part of the cost of the asset. Qualifying asset Is one that necessarily takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borroY.'Ing costs are recognised as 
expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(p) Govemment grants 
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

Government grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised In the 
Statement. of Profit and Loss, as Income or deduction from the relevant expense, on a systematic 
basis In the periods In which the expense Is recognised. 

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and.equipment are included in liabilities 
as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a diminishing balance basis 
over the expected lives of the" related assets to match them with the costs for which they are intended 
to compensate and presented within other income. In case of the Government grant received is to 
compensate the import cost of assets subject to an export obligation as primary condition, 
Government grants are included in liabilities as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit 
and loss according to fulfilmeni Or associated export obligation and presented within other operating 
revenues. 
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(q) Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a ftnanc1aJ 
liability or. another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign 
currency foreign"exchange forward contracts. 

I. Financial assets 
Initial re.Cognltlon and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or lOss, transacllon costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. 

Classifications 
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at eflher amortised cost 
or fair value depending on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and 
the oontractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. 

Bu~lness model assessment 
The Company makes an ·assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is 
held at an Instrument level because this· best reflects the way the business is managed end 
infonnation is. provided tO management. 

A financial asse_t is measured at amortised cost only If both of the following conditions are met 

it is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets In order to collect 
contractual cash nows. 

the contractual t9fTTls of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and Interest.· 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate ('EIR') method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an Integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is ifiduded as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from imp~:lirment are recognised in the profit or loss. 

berecognltlon of financial assets 
A financial asset (or, whe"ro applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is prtmaiily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) 
when: The -rights to receive ·cash flows from the asset have "expired, or the Company has 
transferred its rights to re<:eive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received· cash flows In full without material delay to a third party under o 'pass·through' 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks end rewards 
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substanuany all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. · 

When the Company has transferred its rights to re<:eive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
Into a 'pass·through' armflgement, it evaluates if and-to wh<lt extent It has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership. When It has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the· risks 
and rewards of the asset. nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to 
recognize the transferred asset to the extent of !Jl~ Company's continuing Involvement. In that 
case. the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferre:d asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a ba-sis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Company has retained. 
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 

consideration that the Company Could be required to repay. 

On derecognition of a financial asset. the difference between· the carrying amount of tlie asset (or 
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the 
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) 
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OC\ iS recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss. · 

lmpalnnent of financial assets 
The Company assessed on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its 
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology 
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by lnd 
AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the 
initial recognition of the trade receivables. 

II. Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of 
directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
After .initial reCognition, interest·bearing loans and borro-wings are subsequenUy measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of' Profit 
and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the ElR arl_'l~tion process. 

Amortised cOst is calcuiated by taking int,o acw'unt any dis~uri~ or premium on acquisition ·and 
fees or costS that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is induded as finance 
costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss. ·-

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss · 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in~uQe .~~ancialliab~ities de_signated upon 
initial recogM:ition as at fair value through profit oi' lo_ss . .,. 

Oerecognltlon of financial liabilities 
'fhe Company derCcognises a-finan~alliability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expired. ' · · · 
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Ill. DartvatiWI flHanclallnstruments 
The Company uses dertvative financial Instruments, e.g. foreign currency foreign exchange 
forward contracts to hedge Its foreign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially 
t&l?OQnised at fair value on the date a derivative contract Is entered Into and are subsequently re­
me~sured at their fair value at the end of each period: Any gai!'ls '?'" losses ar;islng from changes 
in the fair v8Jue of derivatives are taken directly to profit pr loss. 

(r) Measurement of fair values i 
In detenninlng the fair value of its financial Instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and 
assumptions that are based on market conditions sOd risks existing at each ~porting date. All 
methods of assessing fair value result in general approxim~tion of value, and such value may never 
actually be realised. · 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used In 
the valuation techniques as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (u-rladjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other thah quoted prices lnch..!ded In Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directty (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.·dertved from prices). 

level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observa~le market data 
(unobservable Inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as 
far as possible. If the inputs uSed to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurem~nt Is categorised In its entirety in the 
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lOwest level Input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers bet-ween levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

(a) Cash and cash ~ulvalents · 
The Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short· 
term deposits with a maturity period of three months or less from the balance sheet date, which ore 
subject to an lnslgnlftcant risk of changes in value. For the purposes of the Cesh flow statement. cash 
and cash equivalents is as d8ftned above, not of outstanding bank overdraft.a. In the balance sheet 
bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings In cuiTent llabUIUes. 

(t) Umlnga per ahare 
Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or lou for the' year attributable to 
equity shareholders by the ~ted average number Of equity ~&hares outstanding during the ~ar. . . 
For the purpose of calculating diluted eamlngs Per share, the' net prOfit or loss for the ~ar attributable 
to equity shareholders and the wa~hted average number of shares outstanding during lha year are 
adjust&ct for the effects of all dlhrtlve potentiaJ equtty shares: 

(u) Provisions and contJngent llabllltJH 
A provision Is recognised If, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present lagal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated retiably, end il Ia probable that an outnow of economic 
benefits will be required to setUa the obligation. Provisions are detennlned by discounUng the expected 
future obligation at pro--lex rate that renects current market assessments of tho time value of money 
risks specific to liability. TheY are not discounted where they are assessed as current In natura. 
Provisions are not made for future operating losses. 
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed ~n there is a Possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existenCe of which wiD be confiimed· only by the occurrence or non-ocwrrence of one or _more 
uncertain future events not wholly v.-iih In the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of re~urces will be required to settle or 
reliable estimate of the amourlt cannot be made. Contingent assets are nOt recognised in the financial. 
Statements but dlsdosed. where en Inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

Com-mitments are. lten1s that are not reported as liabilitieS as on balance sheet date. Capital 
commitments are disdosed when thefe is a projected capital expenditure to spend on long-term 
assets over a period of time: Other commitments are disdosed when there Is an undertaking to tumn -­
quan'tified exports In future years. 

Provisions, contingent liabilitl4i!s and contingent assets and commitments are. ~ewed--at each 
balance sheet date. 

(v) Taxation 
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It Is recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss. 
except when they relate to items that are recognised In Other Comprehensive Income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In Other Comprehensive 
Income or directly in equity respectively. 

I. Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receiv3ble on the taxable Income or kiss for 
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The 
amount of current lax renects the best estimates of th~ lax amount expected to be paid or 
received after considering the uncertainty, If any, related to irlcome taxes. It is measured using 
-lax rates. (and lax laws) enacted or substailtivety enacted by the r~portlng date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legaDy enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts, and it is Intended to realise the asset ahd seiue the UabUity on a 
net basis or simultaneously. 

It Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is reCognised on temporary differences between the canyUlg amounts Of assets and 
liabilities-_in the balance" sh&et and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred Jax. liabilities are general1y recognised for aa taxai:Jie tempcnry 

. differences: Deferred tax. asSets are generaDy recognised for aD deductible temporaty differences . . . 
to the extent that h is probable that taxable profttJ Vt1U be avaDable against v.tllch those deductible 

temporary differences c8n be utmsed.· Such deferred tax assets and llabUitJes are not recognised 

if the temporary difference artsos from the Initial recognition of other assets and llabiiHies In a 

transacUon that affects rielther the taxai:Jie proftt nor the aca:Kmtir:lg profit. . . . 
The carryblg amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet data and reduced 
to the extent that h Is no longer probable that sumclent taxable profits wiD be evallable to aDow aU 
or part o! the asset to be rec:overed. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting· date and recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits Ylill be available against v.tlich they 
can be used. 
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DefeiTed tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of 
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of Its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities 
on a net basis. 

(w) Segment reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent With the internal reporting to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker ~cooM~ of the. Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The Board of Directors of the 
Company has been identified as being the CODM and·CODM reviews the operations of the Company 
as a whole. · 

(x) R~cent accounting pronouncements 
i. On 24th Marth. 2021, the MCA through a notification, amended Schedule Ill of the Act. The 

amendments revise DivisiOn I, II and 111 of Schedule 111 to enhance the disdosures required to be 
made by the Company in its financial statements. These amendments are applicable to the 
Company from 1st April, 2021. 

ii. On 18th June, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs rMCA") through Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, .2021 has notified various amendments to lnd AS. 
These amendments are applicable to the Company from 1st April, 2021. 

' 
The Company is currenUy evaluating the impact of these amendment on the financial statements. 

" _, .. 

·-
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0 

'· Pf'o9efty, Plant and Equipment 

O.scrtpJJon of UAts .... 
01.04.2020 

F reenold Land 13.88 ........ 242.89 
Plant and EQUipment 1713.40 
Furniture and F~m 6.19 
Vehicles 53.07 

. Off"~ee eqUipment 14.78 
Total 2044.21 

Freehold Lind ....... 209.73 
Plant and Equipment 1704.76 
Fumru.a and Fl:xtJses '" Vehicles . 53.07 
Office equipment 13.26 
Total tnt.7t 

""'"a amount -- ""-"' .... 
during the adjustments 31.03.2021 

' 
2.03 
5.24 

0.61 
7.18 

39.06 
16.80 
1.18 

1.52 ..... 

5.90 
8.18 

14.06 

13.88 
244.92 

1718.64 
6.19 

53.07 
15.39 

2052.09 

13.88 
242.89 

1713.40 
6.19 

53.07 
14.78 

20-44.21 

Opening 
accumulated 

" . "'" 
155.61 

1488.01 
4.76 

41.91 
12.45 

1702.7-i 

I de~eiallon 

149.86 
1403.56 

4.59 ,. ... 
11.67 

16011.72 

0. -"'" lor !he year 

8.94 
64.52 

0.32 
3.48 
0.96 

78.22 

!Of the year 

7.99 
91.94 
0.17 
5.07 
0.58 

105.75 

~""" Eliminated 
on dlspoulsl 
adustmenls 

2.24 
7.49 

11.73 

tlnlakht 
Natca amount 

""'""' .... 
accumulated 31.03.2020 ,, 

'""" 13.88 13.88 
. 164.55 80.37 87.28 
1552.53 166.11 225.39 

5.08 1.11 1.43 
45.39 7.68 11.16 
13.41 \.98 2.33 

1780.98 . 271.13 341.47 

155.61 87.28 59.87 
1488.01 225.39 301.20 

4.76 1.43 0.42 
41.91 11.18 16.23 
12.45 2.33 1.39 

1702.74 341.47 392.19 

3. i Property, ~ni and EQ.jpment of the Company ~ ·provld~ as ~ecurily against the secured bom:IWings o1 the Company es do!JIIIed in note no. 18 and 21 10 the 
rln8tlc:lal statements. 

3.2 N~ amount of borroWing coD II capitalised dl.ririg the current and previous year. 
3.3 Nil amount of impMmenl loss Is recogntsed dt.wing the current and previous year. 
3.4 Also refer note no. 2 (I) for option uaed by the Company 1o use canylng value of previous GAAP as deemed costas on 01.04.2018. 
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Particulars 

-4. Capital work-In-progress 
Balance as at the beginning of lhe year 
Add: Additions during the year 
less: Capitalisation du~ng the year 
Balance as at the end of the .year 

Asot 
31.03.2021 

tIn lakht 
Asot 

31.03.2020 

24.·U 

24.43 

4.1 Capital ~-in-prOgress relates to 'property, plant and eq~ipment being buildings under C!JflStt\JctiOn and 
·not ready to use as at 01.04.2019. · · 

5. Other flnandal assets (non-c:urrent) 
Ananclal assets at amortised cost 
(unsecured oonsidered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Deposit$ with banks having more than twetve monthS maturity (pledged 
with banks towards margin against bank guarantees) 

· Interest accrued on deposits with banks 
Security deposits 
Total 

5.1 Refer note no. 41 

6. Deferred tax assets (net) 
Defemtd tax assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Government grants 
Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Unwinding of upfront fees 
Deferred expenditure· 1 
Derivative finandallnstruments carried at FVTPL 
Total deferred tax liabilities ~. , 

1.19 

21.12 
22.31 

59.98 
35.93 
95.91 

0.00 
O.Ot 
O.Ot 
0.02 

20.01 

9.30 
21.13 
so .... 

66.12 
59.06 

125.18 

0.04 
0.02 

0.06 

OeferTed tax assets (net) (re!er note no. 36) 85.89 125.12 
I 

6.1 The Company is confident that the deferred tax assets carried at the end of the year Is fuSty racoven~ble 
and there will be sufficient future taxable profits to adjust deferred tax assets artslng on account or 
property, plant and equipment;ancl government grants. 

7. Other non-eum~nt as .. ts 
Non Financial assets at amortised cost 
(unsecured considered good, unless othefwlse stated) 
Capital Advances 
Advances other than capital advances 
Prepaid expenses 
Other advances 
Total 

71 
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Particulars 

8. lnventor1ea 
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. unless otherwise stated) 

Raw materials 
Wori(-in-progress 

Finished goods 
Stores and spares 
Saleable waste (valued at net realisable value) 
Total 

Goods-In-transit Included In above Inventories are as under: 
Raw materials 
Stores and spares 
Finished goods 

Asat 
31.03.2021 

412.01 
168.61 
149.26 

42.11 
6.90 

778.89 

0.07 

8.1 Inventories are hypothecated to secure short-term borrowings (refer note no. 21 ). 
8.2 The method of valuation of Inventories has been stated in note no. 2 (i). 

t In lakhs 
Asat 

31.03.2020 

361.44 
109.45 
150.58 
41.09 

4.39 
666.95 

8.3 N~ amount of inventories were wrinen down to net realisable value during the current and previous year. 
Similarly, Nil amount of reversal of write down was accounted during the current and previous reporting 
year. 

8.4 Cost of inventory recognised as an expense during the year are as per note no. 29 and 30. 

9, Trade receivables 
(unsecured, considered good) 
Trade receivables 
Total 

301.73 
301.73 

9.1 Trnde receivables are hypothecated to secure short-term borrowings {refer note no. 21). 

223.25 
223.25 

9.2 No trade receivable are due from directors or other officer.> of the Company either severally or jointly with 
any other person. Nor any trade receivable ere due from firms or private companies respectively in which 
any director Is a partner or a director or a member. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are 
generally on terms of 7:to 120 days of credit period. 

9.3 The Company's exposure to credit 8nd currency risk, and loss allowances related to trade receivables is 
disclosed in note no. 41. 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with Banks 
- In current accounts 50.27 125.30 

Cesh on hand 4.18 1.29 
Total 54.45 126.59 

10.1 Refer note no. 41 
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Particulars 

11. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances ' 
-Deposits with more than twelve months maturity (ptedQed with banks 
towards margin against bank guarantees) 

-Deposits with original maturity more than twelve months but remaining 
maturity of less than twelve months (pledged with banks towards margin 
against bank guarantees) 
-Deposits with original maturity more than three months but remaining 
maturity of less than twelve months 

less: Amounts disclosed as other financial assets (non-current) {refer 
note no. 5] 
Total 

11.1 Refernoteno.41 

12. Other financial assets (current) 
Financial assets at amortised cost 
(unsecured considered good, unless olhei'\Yise stated) 
Interest receivable ., 
Interest subsidy receivable 
Duty drawback receivable on expor1 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
Derivative financial inslrumenls (refer note 12.1) 
Total 

As at 
31.03.2021 

1.19 

17.01 

128.00 

146.20 
1.19 

145.01 

12.73 
6.75 

0.33 

0.00 
19.87 

tIn lakhs 
Asat 

31.03.2020 

20.01 

206.07 

228.08 
20.01 

208.07 

3.15 
5.53 

8.68 

12.1 The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate 
risk including foreign exchange fOf'Nard contracts. For further details of derivative financial instruments 
refer note no. 41. 

12.2 Refer note no. 41 

13. Current Tax Assets (Net) 
Advance income tax (net of provision for current tax) 
Total 

14. Other current assets 
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Advances other than caplta!.advances 
Advances to suppliers of goods and services 
Other advances 

Balances with Indirect Tax Authorities (taxes and 
duties recoverablef refundable) 
Taxes and duties deposited under protest 
Prepaid expenses 
Total 

73 

8.31 
8.31 

2.45 
t.OO 

108.2t 

3.98 
2.75 

118.39 

7.88 
7.88 

3.09 
3.01 

76.90 

4.85 
3.17 

91.02 
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Particulars 

15. Non-current assets classified as held for salo 
Property, plant and equipment held for sale 
Total 

As at 
31.03.2021 

.tIn lakhs 
As at 

31.03.2020 

0.30 
0.30 

15.1 During the financial year 2019-20,1he Company had decided to sell a part of obsolete property, plant and 
equipment, with carrying amount of 't 3.66 lakhs at the time of decision to sell that property, plai1t and 
equipment. On the same day, the said non-current asset was reclassified as held for sate. The said non­
current asset held for sate has been sold during the current financial year for an amount of t 0.21 takhs 
and the resultant loss off 0.09 lakhs has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 
'Other expenses'. There are no liabilities attached to these assets. 

Non - current fair value measurements: Assets classified as held for sate during the reporting-year are 
measured at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell at the time of rectassifiC8lion. Fair 
value of the assets was determined uslng. expected market realizable value using the management 
assessmenl This is a level 3 measurement and key inputs under this approach are price per asset 
comparable fOf the property, plant and equipment in similar business and technology. 
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~In lakha 
Partlcut.ra .... 

31.03.2021 
.. .. 

31.03.2020 
18. EqultySMireapkal 

of Amount Number 
shares 

of Amounl 

Authorised aha,. capital 
Equily shares oft 101- each 

Prelererice shares of t 1 01- each 

Total. 

Issued shsra capital 
Equity shares of~ 10/- each 

To<al 

' Subscribed and fulty ~ld up share capital 
Equity snares ott 10/- each 

To<al 

8000000 

2000000 

3735000 

3735000 

3735000 

. 3735000 

800.00 8000000 800.00 

200.00 2000000 200.00 

1000.00 1000.00 

373.50 3735000 373.50 

373.50 3735000 373.50 

373.50 3735000 373.50 

373.50 3735000 373.50 

16.1 Rsconclllatlon' of the number of &ham and amount outstlndlng at tha beginning and at the and of tha 
)'lllr: 

Equity sh.lrwa oft 101- aach: 
PartiCUIIU'$ Num""' ....... ot 

Number of shares and amount at tho beginning ot 3735000 
the year 
Chanoe in number of. sharet~ and amount during 
the year 
Number of shares and amount at the and of tha 
yet" 

3735000 

Amount Number of 

""'"'' 373.50 3735000 

373.50 3735000 

Amount 

373.50 

373.50 

18.2 Tha rights, pnfar~~nc~ and 'rutrlctlona atblchlng to aac.h clan of shares including restrictions on the 
distribution of dividends and the repayment of c.tpltal: 
~ .l!:!.!rn.i Tho Company has one class of equity shale having par value of~ 101· per share. Upon a show 
of hands every rnembei" holding ,equity shares and entitled to vote and present in person shall have one vote; 
end upon e poll the voting right of avery member holding equity shares and enliUcd to vote and present in petSOn 

or by proxy shall be In the same proportion es the capital paid on the equity share or shares (whether fully paid 
or partly paid up) held by him bears to the total paid up equity capital of the Company. The dividend, if any, 
ptO?OSed by the Board shall be subjoc:lto the approvol of tho sharoholders except In case of Interim dMOond. In 
the event of liquidation, lhe equity sharehold.,. are eRglble to receive lhe remaining assets of the Company after 
dislrlbutlon of ell preferential amounts. The dlslfibutlon will be in proportion to the number of equity shWes he'd 
by the shareholders. 

16.3 Sha,.s In respect of each class In the company held by lb holding company or lb uttlmata holdlng 
company Including shares held by subsldlartn or aasoclatas of the holding company or the uttlmate 
holding company In aggregate: 
There is no hok!lng or utllmate holding company of the Company. 

11.4 Sha,.a In the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 per cent aharn: 
Name of the sl\ereho6der Number of . % held Number of "hold 

d\ares shares 
Equity iharn oi t 101- each: 

111.5 The Company has notlsaued any shates purauanl to a contraCt wllhou1 payment being received In cash In the 
CUI'Tent yeer and the preceding fMI ye~n. The Company has not Issued any bonus shal'n nor has there been 
any txsy.back of shares In lhe CUI'Tent year and the precedlng five ye~n. 
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Particulars 

17. Other Equity 
(a) Equity component of compound financial instruments 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Less: Allocation of amount of redemption of preference shares relating to 

equity component 
Balance at the end of the year 

(b) Capital redemption reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Transfer from retained eaminQ 
Balance at the end of the year 

(c) Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit for the year 
Other oomprehensive income/(·) expense for the year, net of in~e tax 

Total com,rehenslve Income for the year 
Balance at lhe end of the Year 

Total 

The description of the purposes of each reserve within equity is as followS: 

~ 
'{' In lakhs 

Asat Asat 
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

17.55 17.55 

17.55 17.55 

65.00 65.00 

65.00 65.CO 

682.00 483.29 
147.21 196.05 

-1.87 0.66 

145.34 198.71 
827.34 682.00 

909.89 764.55 

(a) Equity component of redeemable preference shares: Under previous GAAP. 5% redeemable non­
cumulative preference shares oft 65.00 lakhs were classified as part of total equity. However. under lnd 
AS the non-cumulative redeemable preference shares are compound financial instruments, where the 
liability component outstanding at the date of transition Is bifurcated by first valuing the debt component 
with the residual being equity. The liability component is determined as the present value of the eventual 
redemption amount of t 65.00 lakhs of preference shares. discounted at the rate at which the Company 
could issue a similar instrument with a similar credit standing but without the feature of discretionary 
dividends during its life. At the transition date i.e., 01.04.2016, 5% redeemable non-cumulative preference 
shares oft 65.00 lakhs were bifurcated into liability component &mounting to t 21.95 lakhs and the 
residual t 43.05 lakhs being equity. The preference·shares of 't 65.00 lakhs were redeemed at a pre­
mature date during the financial year 2018-19. At the time of pre-mature redemption of 5% redeemable 
non-cumulative preference shares of 't 65.00 lakhs during the financial year 2018-19, an amount of 't 
25.50 lakhs were aUocated from equity component of compound financial instrument and resklual t 39.50 
Lakhs from the liability component by taking the fair value of compound financial instrument at the time of 
its redemption. After allocation of 't 25.50 lakhs from equity component of compound financial instrument 
at the time of its redemption, balance amount oft 17.55 lakhs is outstanding as on the Balance Sheet 

date. 
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(b) Capital redemption reserve: Capital redemption reserve has been created pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 on account of redemption of preference shares out of the profits 
of the Company. · ' 

(c) Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profit that the Company has earned till date, less any 
transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to investors. 

Remeasurements .of the defined benefit plans whiCh are the part of retained earnings 

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans represents the ·roUQINing as per lnd AS 19, Employee 
Benefits: 

(i) actuarial gains and losses; 

(ii) the return on plan assets, exduding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit liability 
(asset): and 

(ii) any change in. the effect of the asset ceiling, exduding amounts induded in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset). 

'· 
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Particulars 

18. Borrowings (non-current) 
Secured - at amortised cost 
Term loan from bank 
Term loan from financial institution 
Other long-term borrowing from bank 

Total 

18.1 Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others: 
Tenn loan from bank: 
Term loan from Punjab National Bank is secured by: 

Asat 
31.03.2021 

20.37 

20.37 

A. Primarv Securitv: 
(i) HypOthecation of machinery, other assets and equipments purchased with the bank loan. 

~ lnlakhs 

Asat 
31.03.2020 

32.14 
29.30 

1.25 

62.69 

B Collateral Securitv: 
(i) First charge on all the existing (except assets financed by SlOB!) and Mure block assets of the 

Company. 

(ii) Extension of first pari passu charge with SIDBI by way of equitable mortgage of factofy land measuring 
34 kanals and 14 marlas and building constructed thereon (20993.5 sq. yards) located at 9th KM Stone, 

Hlsar Bhiwani Road. VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana. 

Term loan from Punjab National Bank with sanctioned amount of f 54.51 lakhs is further covered by 
irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of the directors of the Company namely Sh. Arlurag 

Gupta, Smt. Sapna Kansal and Sh. Nikhil Goel. 

Term loans from financial Institution: 
Term )oQns from financial institution i.e., Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) Is secured 

by. 

A. Primary securilv: 
(i) First charge by way of hypothecaiion in favour of SIDBI of the plant, machinery, equipment, tools, 
spares, accessories and all other assets which have been or proposed to be acquired under the projects/ 

SChemeS. · 

B. Co!later31 Security: 
(i) Extension of first charge by way of hypothecation in favour of SIOBI of all the borrower's movables, 
induding the movables, plant. machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories. office equipments, 
computers, fumitures and fixtures, located at 9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar, 

Haryana and acquired after 01.04.2011. 

(ii) Extension of first· pari passu charge with Punjab National Bank by way of mortgage of all immovable 
properties of the Company, both present and future situated at 9th KM S:one. Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO 
Oabra. Hisar, Haryana admeasuring 34 kanals and 14 marlas including factory shed, building and structure 

thereon. 
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Term loan from financial inStitution i.e., Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIOBI) with 
sanctioned amount of t 490.00 lakhs is further covered by irrevocable and unconditional personal 
guarantee of the di~or of the Company namely Sh. Anurag Gupta, Smt. Sapna Kansal and former 
directors of the Company namely Sh. Gopat Krishan Gupta and Sh. Triloki Nath Goel. 

Other long-term borrowing from bank: 
Other loog-term borrowing from· bank is secured by hypothecation of motor vehicle acquired out of the 
proceeds of the said borrowing from bank. 

18.2 Terms of repayment: 
Tenn loan from bank: 
Term loan of t 54.51 Lakhs from Punjab National Bank is repayable in 60 monthly instalments oft 0.91 
Lakh each commencing with effect from April 2019. Rate of interest@ 6.90% p.a. as at 31.03.2021 and@ 
8.15% p.a. as at 31.03.2020. 

Year wise repayment schedule C"l 
Term loan from bank 

·l 

Tenn loans fiom financial Institution: 

202G-21 
10.90 

2023--2 .. 
9.79 

I!' In lakhs 
2021-22 2022-23 

10.90 10.90 

Tenn loan with sanctioned amount of t 490.00 Lakhs (disbursed only t 431.23lakhs) Is repayable In 72 
monthly Instalments as per original sanctioned amount comprising of first71 monthly Instalments of t 6.81 
Lakhs each and last Instalment of '{' 6.49 lakhs commencing after a moratorium of 12 months from the 
date of first disbursement ol the loan during May 2015. As the availment In the term loan account is t 
431.23 Lakhs only, the said term loan Is repayable in first 63 montNy instalmeflts of '{' 6.81 lakhs eadl 
and last instalment of '{' 2.20 lakhs ...,;th effect from May 2016. Rate of interest@ 8.70% p.a. as at 
31.03.2021 and 9.75% p.a. as at 31.03.2020 I'. 

Year wise repaymelit schedule L) 2020-21 
T enn loans from financial insliMion 81.72 

'{'In lakha 

2021-22 
29.44 

t Rate of interest is without considering interest subsidy. under Revised Restructured Technology 
Upgradation Fund Scheme (RTUFS). 

Other long-term borrowing from bank: 
Other long-tenn borrowing from ICICI Bank limited amounting to '{' 10.00 lakhs Is repayable in 36 
equated monthly li1statments, (EMis) of ~ 0.32 Lakh (induding interest) commencing from 10th August 
2018. Rate of interest@ 9.05% p.a. as at31.03.2021 and@ 9.05% p.a. as at 31.03.2020. 

Year wise repayment scheduler") 2020-21 
Other long tenn borrowing f~ bank 3.52 

~lnlakhs 

2021-22 
1.25 

('') Figures of year ,.,.ise repayment schedule stated In above paragraphs includes current maturities of 
long-term borf9Wings sho<Nn separately in note no. 23. 

18.3 Refer note no. 41 
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Partlcu Iars 

19. Other flnanclalllabllltJes (non-current) 
Financial liabilities at amortla8d cost 
Other interest accrued but not due 
Total 

19.1 Refer nOte no. 41 

20. Other non-current liabilities 
Deferred revenue for Government grant (see note 20.1) 
Total 

As at 
31.03.2021 

3.81 
3.81 

3.66 
3.66 

'fin lakhs 
As at 

31.03.2020 

26.45 
26.45 

23.27 
23.27 

20.1 In the past, under the Export Promotion Capital Gocxls (EPCG) Scheme, the Company had received 
Government grant for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. As per the EPCG 
scheme the Company has an obliga_lion to export up to 618 times of gfant amount. As and when the 
Company fulfils the export obligation, proportionate grant is released to the Statement of Profit and loss 
(refer note no. 27.2 a~ 39).· 

21. Borrowings (current). 
Secured- at amortised cost 
Loans repayable on demand from banks 
Woriting capital bon'owtngs 
Total 

21.1 'Nature of securtty and guarantee by directors or others: 

103.58 
103.58 

91.11 
91.11 

Loans repayable on demand from banks (Working capital borrowings) having sanctioned amount of ~ 
200.00 lakhs is secured by hypothecation of stocks of various raw materials viz manufacturing material, 
raw materials including excisable raw materials, stocks in process, semi finished goods, finished goods 
(including bought out finished goods) and hypothecaQon of entire receivables/ book debts. 

The said facility from .Punjab National Bank Is further secured by f~rnl charge on machinery of the company 
Installed up to 31.03.2011 and first charge ranking pari passu with Small Industries Development Bank of 
India {SIDBI) by way of equitable mortgage of all the immovable properties i.e., land and building 
constructed thereon of the company situated at VPO Dabra, Distt, Hisar, admeasuring about 34 kana! and 
14 mar1as owned by the Company. · 

loans repayable on demand from banks (wof1<.ing capital borrowings) are further covered by irrevocable 
and unconditional personat'guara!ltee of the directors of the eofnpany namely Sh. Anurag Gupta, Smt. 
Sapna Kansal and Sh. Nikhil Goel. 

21.2 Refer note no. 41 
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Particulars 

22. Jrade p~yables 
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer 
note no. 38) 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other· than micro enterpriSes and 
small enterprises 
Total 

22.1 Refer note no. 41 

23. Other financial liabilities (current) 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Other interest accrued but not due 
Employees liabilities 

Accrued expenses 
Total 

23.1 Refer note no. 41 

24. Other current llabflltles 
Advances from customers (see note 24.1) 
Statutory remittances (see note 24.2) 
Deferred revenue for Government grant (see note 24.3) 
Total 

As at 
31.03.2021 

3.65 

122.27 

125.92 

41.59 
0.16 

69.84 
14.76 
34.24 

180.59 

23.04 
3.55 

79.52 
106.11 

~·· 
flnlakhs 

As at 
31.03.2020 

9.40 

152.14 

161.54 

96.15 
1.02 

76.60 
24.72 
26.15 

224.64 

17.10 
3.71 

105.17 
125.98 

24.1 Advances from customers iS recognised when payment is received before the related performance is 
satisfied. · 

24.2 Statutory remittances includes contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance corpomtion, 
tax deducted at source, tax 00\lecled at source, goods and services tax etc. 

24.3 In the past, under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme, the Company had received 
Government grant for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. As per the EPCG 
scheme the Company has an obligation to export up to 6/8 times of grant amount. As and when the 
Company fulfils the export obl_igation, proportionate grant is released to the Statement of Profit and loss 
(refer note no. 27.2 and 39). 

25. Provisions (curTent) 
Provision for employee benefits· gratuity (refer note no. 42) 
Total 

26. CurTent Tax llablliUes (Net) 
Provision for current income tax (net of prepaid taxes) 
Total 
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Partlcularw 

27. Revenue From opeljStlons 
Sale of products 
Manufactured goods 
Total - ule of manufactured goods (a) 

Stock-in-trade 
Total· sale of stodc:·ln-trado (b) 

Total sale of products (a)+ (b) 

Other operating revenues 
Sale of waste 
Sale of S011P 
Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme (see note 27 .2) 
Export benefits (see note 27.3) 

Tolol 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

2.58 
2.58 

279<4-.11 

22.15 
1.06 

45.22 
8.18 

76,61 

2870,72 

t In lakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

3093.63 

25.32 
0.38 

20.95 
1.21 

-47.86 

3141.49 

27.1 The following Is an analysis of the Company's revenue from Its products and sale of waste/scrap: 

Sale of products 
Sale of manufactured goods 
Sale of stock-in-trade goods 
Other oporallng revenues 
Sale of waste 
Sale of scrap 
Total revenue from contracts with cUstomers 

India 
Outside India 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 

nmlng of revenue recognition 
Goods transferred at a point in time 
Over the period 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 

Major Product lines for manufactured goods 
Cotton yam blended 

2791.53 3093.63 
2.58 

22.15 25.32 
1.06 0.38 

2817.32 3119.33 

2264.66 2768.98 
552.66 350.35 

2817.32 3119.33 

2817.32 3119.33 

2817.32 3119.33 

27.2 In the past, under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme, the Company had received 
Government grant for the purchase of certain items of property, plant aild equipment. As per the EPCG 
scheme the Company has an obligation to export up to 618 times of grant amount. As and when the 

. Company fulfils the export obligation, proportionate grant is released to· the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(refer note no. 39). 
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Particulars 

Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme 
Ooenina Government grant relating to EpCG Scheme 
Current liability 
Non-Cummtliabillty 
Sub-total (a) 

Released to the Statement of Profit and loss· 
SUb-total (b) 

Closing Government grant relating to EPCG. ~e (a.b) 

B!furca!lon of dosing Government grant relating to epcg Scheme 
Current liability. 
NOirCurrent liability 
Total 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

105.13 
23.03 

128.16 

45.22 
45.22 

82.94 

79.49 
3.45 

82.94 

27.3 Export benefits are In the nature of Government gr8ms ocwering foGowlng benefitS: 
(a) Duty drawback benefits 8.18 

28. Other Income 

Interest Income 
-on bank deposits (at amortised cost) 
- on other financial assets (a1 amortised cost) 
Other non-operating Income (net of expenMs dlrwc:Uy .urlbutabla to 
such Income) 
Fair value gain on flnandallnStruments at FVTPL (see note 28.1) 
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Government grant relaUng to property, plant and equipment 
Provision for Interest written back (see note 26.2) 
Interest on shortfall In payment of advance Income tax Ytrltten back 
Miscellaneous income 
Total 

8.1 .. 
0.96 

0.06 
2.88 

0.04 
29.39 

0.12 
0.05 

.. 1.62 

tIn lakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

149.11 
149.11 

20.95 
20.95 

128.16 

105.13 
23.03 

128.18 

1.21 

9.43 
1.29 

8A2 
2.81 
0.04 

0.33 
22.32 

28.1 Fair value gain on financial Instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) relates to foreign 
exchange forward contracts that did not qualify for hedg~ accounUng. 

28.2 Provision towards interest on expected unfulfilment of "expOrt obligation amounUng to 'f 29.39 lakhs 
(previous reporting year • t nil) has been 'Mitten back. 
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Particulars 

29. Cost of materials consumed 
Cost of raw materials consumed 
Opening stock of raw materials 
Add: purchases of raw -:naterials 

Less: 
Sale of raw materials 
Closing stock of raw materials 
Cost of materials consumed- Total 

29.1 Cost of materials consumed comprises: 
Textile waste 
Polyester staple fiber 

Cotton waste 
Total 

30. Purchases of stock-In-trade 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Total 

30.1 Purchases of stock-in-trade comprises: 
Cotton yam 
Total 

31. Changes In Inventories of fiOished goods and work-In-progress 
Closing Inventories 
Finished goods 
Saleable waste 
Wori<-ln-progresS 

Opening Inventories 
Finished goods 
Saleable waste 
Work-in-progress 

(:} lngease/ dwease in inventories Q! ~ ~ .2M ~ 
proaress 
Finished goods 
Saleable waste 
Work-in-progress 
Changes in Inventories of finished goods and work-in-pi-ogl'ess. 

total 

84 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

361.44 
1691.20 
2052.64 

9.80 
412.01 

1630.83 

1105.63 
377.72 
147.48 

1630.83 

2.57 
2.57 

2.57 
2.57 

149.26 
6.90 

168.61 
324.77 

150.58 
4.39 

109.45 
264.42 

1.32 
-2.51 

-59.16 
.6(1.35 

~ 
tIn lakhs 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020 

392.12 
1762.42 
2154.54 

361.44 
1793.10 

1255.66 
445.45 

91.9S 
1793.10 

150.56 
4.39 

109.45 
2S.U2 

178.61 
2.91 

101.14 
282.66 

28.03 
·1.48 
-8.31 
18.24 
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Particulars 

32. Employee benefits expense 
Salaries, wages and bonus 

Conlribution to provident and other funds (refer note no. 42) 
(Net of Government grant amounting to ~ 0.49 l.akhs (previous reporting 
year t 2.72 lakhs) 
Gratuity expense (refer note no. 42) 
Staff welfare expenses 
Total 

33. Finance costs 
Interest expense (see note 33.1) 
Interest paid on shortfall in payment of advance Income tax 
Other borrowing costs 
Total 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

201.48 
10.9Q 

3.98 
2.91 

219.27 

7.84 
0.02 
0.63 
8 . .(9 

~ 
~In lakhs 

For the 
·year.ended 
31·.03.2020 

172.66 
7.17 

3.11 
0.56 

183.50 

20.55 
0.85 
0.63 

22.03 

33.1 Interest expense is net of interest subsidy off 1.22/akhs (previous reporting year· f 2.98/akhs) received 
under Revised Restructured Technology Upgradatlon Fund Scheme (RTUFS) of the Government of India 
and interest subvention of t 1.11 lakhs (previous reporting year· t nil) reoeived from Punjab National Bank 
against loans to MSMEs. 

34. Depredation e:xpen .. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note no. 3) 
Total 
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Particulars 

35. Other expenses 
Consumption of stores and spares 
Packing material consumed 
Diesel consumed 
Power expenses 
Contract labour charges 
Repair and maintenance 
-Machinery 
-Buildings 

Insurance charges 
Fees and subsaiption 
Auditor's remuneration 

- Audit fees 
- Tax audit fees 
• GST audit fees 
- Certification fees 

legal and professional charges 
Falr value loss on financial Instruments at FVTPL 
F relght and cartage outward 
Oearing and forwarding charges (export) 
Commission on sale 
Net Joss on dl~posal of property, plant and equipment held for sale 
Impairment loss on recognition on norK:Urrent assets at the lo\Ner of their 
carrying amoUnt anct.fair value less costs to sen 
Miscellaneous expenses (s_ee note 35.1) 
T01al 

~ 
~ In lakhs 

For the For the 
year ended year ended 
31.03.2021 31.03.21]20 

105.53 86.85 
33.46 32.54 

166.68 134.42 
359.15 398.93 

31.56 14.38 

7.96 10.95 
7.79 4.70 
7.60 6.25 
5.43 8.52 

1.35 1.35 
0.25 0.25 
0.80 0.40 
0.40 0.40 
2.49 2.08 

1.33 
58.40 29.07 

9.'11 8.80 
.5.94 1.13 
0.09 

3.38 

24.01 20.12 
128.35 753.83 

35.1 Miscellaneous expenses does not include any item of expenditure with a value cA more than 1% cA the 
revenue from operaUons. · · 
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36.1 Movemant In defamtd tax balances: 
Particulars 

Deferred tax assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Government grants 
Total deferred tax ISMtl (1) 

Deferred tiiX llabllhln 
Unwinding of upfront lees 
Deferred expenditure 
Derivative linandal instruments carried at FVTPL 
Total deferred t.llllliabWtin (b) 

Defemtd tax assets (net) (a-b) 

Deftlrred taX ISMll 

Property, plant and equlpmenl 
Government grants 
Total deferred tax aHatl (a) 

Defe1Ted 1811 llabllltln 
Unwinding ol upfront fees 
Deferred expenditure 
Derivative financial instnJmentS carried at FVTPl. 
Total deferred tnllablltdH (b) 

Deferftd tu UMts (net) (.-b) 

66.12 
59.06 

125.18 

0.04 
0.02 

.... 
125.12 

66.66 
61.85 

128.51 

0.12 
0.04 
0.25 
0.41 

128.10 

-6.14 59.98 
-23.13 35.93 
-29.27 95.91 

-0.04 0.00 
.Q.Ot 0.01 
0.01 0.01 .. ... 0.02 

-29.23 95.89 

f lnlakhs 

-0.54 66.12 
-2.79 59.06 
-3.33 125.18 

..... 0.04 

..0.02 0.02 

..0.25 
-0.35 0.01 

..... 125.12 

DefanM tax assets and dellfTOd tax llabllties haVe been otfseC as they are governed by the same taxation laws. 

"'~ Tu. axwnH recoaniMd In the Statement of Prom and loss: fIn lakhs 
Particulars fM ... fM ... 

y.aranded ywar end.ct 
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

Current tax axpe_nse 
CUrrent tax 33.66 7-i.83 

33.06 74.63 

Adjustment oll!lx relating to earUer. periods ·5.1-4 1.70 
·5.14 1.70 

Deferred t.ax expense 

Origination and reverul of temporary differences 29.23 2.98 
29.23 2.98 

T ot.al tax expense 57.75 78.31 
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)6.3 Amounts recognbed In Other Comprehenalw Income/(-) Expenae: 

Remeasurements of the ·2.50 0.63 ·1.87 
defined benefit plans 

-2.50 

~.4 Reeondl!.tion of effectlw tax rate: 
Particulars 

Profit bel'ore tax 
Company"a Indian dome&1lc tax nate 
Tax using the Company's Indian domestic lax rate 

Tax effect of : 
Adjustmenl of tax relating to ear1ier periods 
Property, plant and equipment 
Government gn1nt relating to EPCG Scheme 

"""" 

0.63 -1.87 

Income tax expenHs reported In the St.t1nient of Profh end Lou 
Effective tax rate 

The Company has decided to 'adopt the opUon perrnlttod under Soctlon 1 156M of the lrlCOI'l1&-taX Act. 1961 with ell'ect 
from the year ended 31sl March, 2020 relevant to the assessment year 2020-21. Aa::t:J«Jingty, the Company has written 
back the excess provisiOn of Income Tax amounting to~ 5.21 takl'ls Curing the wrrent financial year out of proviSion for 
Income Tax of'{' 74.63 lakhs made during the year ended 31st March, 2020, which was made on the basis ol oc::rmaJ 
Income tax rates presaibed lor corporate assesses, o.ther than those which have opted lor payment of tax in certain 
special cases such as under Section 115BAA of the tnc:ome.llix Act. 1961. According!y, the Company has also 
recognised provision fOf taxation and re-measured Its deterred tax aSsetslllabllltles on the basis of rate pesaibed In 
the nld section end the Impact of tax e1Cp80&8 of cun9tll )'e8l and re-me8sureme0t of deferred tax auetslliabllltin Is 
retog• 'led In these financial statements. 
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Particulars 

37. Earnings per equity share (EPS) 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

tIn lakhs 
For the 

year end&d 
31.03.2020 

The calculation of Earning Per Share {EPS) as dlsdosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss has been 
made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS)· 33 on ·earning Per Share•. 

A statement on calculation of EPS Is as under: 
Profit fOf the year attributable to the equity shareholders 
Total (a) · 

Weighted average number of:equlty shares outstanding during the year 
(nos.) 
(Nominal value of equity share t' 101- each) 
Total (b) 

Ba~c EPS (')(Bib) 
!);luted EPS {'){alb) 

37.1 There are no potential equity shares. 

147.21 
147.21 

3735000 

3735000 

3.94 
3.94 

38. Dladoaure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2001 

198.05 
198.05 

3735000 

3735000 

5.30 
5.30 

Dlaclosure under lhe Micro, Small end Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 are provided aa 
under, to the extent the Company h .. I'KIIived lntlrnlltlon from the ·suppllers" regarding their 

{a) 

statuS under the Act. ; 

The principal amount and the Interest due thereon (to be shcMtl 
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year; · :. · · ' 
Principal amount due to mk:to and amaiJ enterprise (refer note no. 22) 
Interest due on above 

(b) The amount of interest paid by the Company In terms of Section 16 of the 
Micro, SmaU and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with 
the amount of the payment made to the suppUer beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year: 

(c) · The amount of interest due end payable for the period of delay In making 
payment (which has been paid but be)Ufld the appointod day during the 
year) but without adding the Interest specified under Miao, Sman and 
Medium EntBI'J)rises Development Act, 2006; 

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year: and 

{e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the 
succeeding years, Until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the sman enterprise, for the purpose or disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

3.65 9 . .W 

3.65 9 ... 0 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 

on the basis of InfOrmation collected by the Management. This has been relied u~ by .the auditors. 
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Particulars For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

39. Contingent liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):­
fal Contingent Liabilities: 
(i) Claims against the Company rlOI ackrlo'Medged as debts in respect of: 

• Value Added Tax/ Central Sales Tax matters in dispute/under appeal 3.98 
-Income Tax matters In dispute/ under appeal 

(il) Counter guarantees issued to Punjab National Bank in respect of the 30.47 
'guarantees issued by the said bank in favour of various government 
authorities 

(iii) The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee Amount not 
benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received determinable 
Presidential assent in September, 2020. The Code has been published in 
the Gazette of India. However, the date on .....tlich the Code will come into 
effect has not been notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet 
been issued. The Company will assess the Impact of the Code when II 
comes Into effect and wiU record any related impact in the period the 
Code becomes effective. Based on a preli_!Tiina.ry assessment, the entity 
believes the impact of the change will oot be significant. 

Cb) Commitments· 
m C!Q!tal commitments 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exeruted on Ca"pltal 3.66 
account and not provided for (net of advances) 
fill Other commitments 
The Company has impc:M1ed capital goods under the Export promotion 580.32 
capital goods scheme, of the Government of India, at concesslonal rates 
of duty on an undertaking to fulfil quantified exports In the future ye.Srs 

·.~ 
~ in lakhs 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020 

4.85 
7.92 

32.30 

Amount not 
detenninabte 

1.37. 

1091.00 

T~ ----~~~.H~----~·~~2=.3~7 

40. No amount of dividend has been proposed to· be distributed to the equlty.shareholdtn for the year. 
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41. Flnanc.lallnstrumanb • ac:c:ountlng chlsslflc.Uona and l•lr Ylllue measurem.nt:s 
The lair values of the fma'ncial lt$MI$ and fiNinclal ~abilities are induded at the amount at ...nictl the in$trument could be 
e~changed in a amant transaction between willing parties. other than in a forced or liquidation s.alea. 

The following methods and assumplions ~used to estiml'lle. the lair values: 

1. Fair value of cash and cash'equlvatants, bank balance5 olhet ~·n cash and cash equivaleflts. aecurity deposits, 
interest aCOlled but not due on borrowings, trade and other short-term receivables. payablu. loans and advances 
aod other current liabilities approximated their C8IT)'ing amounts largely due to lhe shott-tetm mawrities of these 
Instruments. · 

2. The Company uses the folowlng hiet'afdly lor determining and disOOsing lhe fair value of llnanci81 lnWumants by 
valuation tochnique. ' · ' 

Level 1: qUOied (unodJu~ted) prices In active markets for Identical asset. or liabilities. 

Level 2: other t&ctwllques lor 'llltllctl aR inputt; ....nictl have a 5ignillcant efToc:t on the recorded lair value are obsefvabla, 
either directly or iodltecdy. 

Level 3: techniques wt1ld! usfi Inputs lhat have a slognifiC8nt effect on the r8COI'08d fair value lh8l are not baaed on 
oble!vablo markot data. Fair va1ue;, generatty cse~ennlned ~~~~ng diKOUI'Ited cah now analysis. 

A. Accounting c:.Usme.t~ona and fair values 
The following tabtes ~ the CllrTying amounts and lair Vlllun ol financial anetJ; end flnllncial liabilities, Including their 
levels in the fair value Neran:hy. · 

As-~ 11 ~brd-~2021 

....._ j Finardallnstruments by catogewy 

F6ntlneW eneta 
FlnencMII enets 111. FVTPL 
OorfVllliYe ftf\landal Nlrumenta (relet note no. 12) 

F6ntlneW .... b 1M ..well Mt c:o.ta 
Security depoalts (refer note nO. 5) ' 
Deposits with blinks (including lr'Ufftt .a:rued IIWwon) (nrt.r ~no. 5) 

F"'-nclal ••••ta whM1I fslr ,.lull a. .enw •• c.anytng value 
T~ receivables (refer note no. 9) ,. 
C.sh end cash equivalents (refet note nO. 10) 
Bank b81ances other lhlln CIISh .net Cash ~Ients (refer note no. 11) 
Others (refer no1e no. 12) · r 

FIMnclalllsbllllles 
Ftnanc:lallllb11111n 111. llm«Used cost 
ElomJowlng5 • lerm loans from banks and flnanclallnstttutton = 
{lne:ludlng.currenl rAaluritlel] {refer note no. 18 and 23) 

FV..nc:llllllbllltHis wh.rw fslr vtilutl la Nme .. canylng vslus 
Trade payabln (refer note no. 22) 
Borrowing5 [current] (refer note no. 21) 
lnler0$1 ac:cr\lcd but not due on bormwlngs (refer note no. 23) 
Olhef interesl accruecl but ilol: duo {refer note no. 1 9 1nd 23) 
Employeea liabiU!ies (refer note no. 23) 
Accrued expenses (refer note no. 23) 

FU..nc:l1l 111eb rec:onled a 

"~' Cu-renl 

Flnlnclllllabllltln r'KOI'dld .. 
NorKU'Tenl 
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"""'"" FalrVIllue 
Volue '""'' '"""" '"""' 3 

0.00 0.00 

21.12 21.12 
!.HI 1.19 

301.73 301.73 
5U5 54.45 

145.01 145.01 
19.81 19.81 

543.37 543.37 

81.96 81.96 

125.92 125.92 
103.58 103.58 

0.16 0.16 
73.65 73.65 
14,76 14.76 
34.24 34.24 

414.27 414.27 

22.31 
521.06 
543.37 

24.18 
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As ~ 31 Men:h 2020 
I Flnenciel in5trumet1ts by C8togOIY 

Fln.nclal-ts 
Fln.nct.l ....U at FVTPL 
Derivative ftnanclallnstrumonts (refer note no. 12) 

An11ndal ....cs at amortised costs 
Securtty deposits (ret• note no. 5) 
0epoa1ts wilh t.nks [lnduding ~terest ~ ltleroon] (rofet' note no. 5) 

Flnanclai....U wn.n. felr v.lue Is sa",.. as c.arrylng velue 
Tr.de receivables (refer note no. 9) 
Cash end c.ah equlvMents (refer note no. 10) 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (relor note no. 11) 
OChen (refer oo\e no. 12) 

Anandal llabWtln 
Anandalllabltmn at •11101 18H cost 
DonowiiiQI • term laMs from banks and linanciallnstltutloo ::: 
(Including current maturltles] (refer note no. 18 and 23) 

Flnand.ll Uabllltles wtl.,. fair Ya!ue ts .. me •• canylng-lue 
Tr.de peyablal (retr.w note no. 22) 
Borrowoluga(c:urqn!J (refer note no. 21) 
lnlMest aocrued but not due on bormwings (refer note no. 23) 
Olhet 1ntentst ec:cruod but not due (refer note-no. 19 and 23) 
Employees U.bllltln (reft!T no1fi no. 23) 
Accrued expenaes (refer note no. 23) 

B. Manurement of fair values 

390.09 
414.27 

._.,.I 

21.13 
29.j1 

223.25 
126.59 
208.07 

8.68 
617.03 

158.&4 

161.54 
. 91.11 

1.02 
103.05 

24.72 
26.15 ... .., 
·so.-« 
568.59 
611.03 

89.14 
cn.29 
sao .. u 

Assets and labl,lltles are to be measured based on the followtng valuation techniques: 

FairVelue 
Level 1 '"'"'' 

21.13 
29.31 

223.25 
126.59 
208.07 .... 
117.03 

158.84 

161.5-4 
91.11 

1.02 
103.05 

2-4.72 
26.15 ....., 

tIn Lakhs 

Lavell I 

u.Re't ~ • Prices and olh4lf relevant lnform.tion genernted by market transac:Uons in..,:IIYing Identical or oomplnlble 

nsets or llabllltlel. 

Income approech - Converting the future amounts based on mat1<et e)(J)OIClatlons to Its present. value us1ng the discounting 
method<Aogy. 

Cost eppro&ctl - .Rep' neut cost method. ' 

Quoted merkel prices In actiYe markets ete a.n.llablel for investmentS In securities and, as such, theM In- estuents are 
daulfled IMthln Levol 1. 

level 1 hieran::hy lndudes tlnandallnstrument:s measured using quoted prices. This lndudd tislod equity Instruments Yof1lc:h 
... ~ In stock exchanges and valued using dosing price at the reporting date. · 

The tar vetue of r1081'1Cia1 instrumeots that ete·not traOed In en adlve markfltls delem\lned using .veluatlon ledw 1 -· The 
Company uses lt:s judgment to sMct a variety of melhods arid make assumptions that are mainly based on the conditions 
exlstlog at the end or each reporting period. · 
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The following table shows the valuation tedmiques used in rileasuring Level 2 8nd L6vel 3 lair values for f!Nindal 
instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheel. as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. Related 
valuation processes are described In note no. 2 (q). 

Financial Instruments measured at lair value. 

Valuation techniqUe T)l>C Signirlcanl !nter-relatlon$hip 
unobservable inputs between significant 

unobservable Inputs 
"end fair value 
measurement 

Derivalive financial instrumentS consist of foreign Forward Exchange Not Applicable Not Applicable 
currency forward ft)(change contracts. Fair values Contracts 
for defivlltive financial inslrumenls are based on 
bank's quotations and are dassifled as Level 2 

Amou"l estimated ..... "" 
.,. estimated Claims and Other Not Applicable Not Applicable 

probabi~ty of the outcome of Utlgatlon based oo the Recoverable 
manaoement's .. ..........,, """""'"" by .,., 
advice. . . 

There have been no transfers between leYel 1, 2 and 3 during the current or previous fmandal year. 

Recondllatlon of level 3 hllr YIIIUH ' 

The following lable shows a reconciliation~ the opening balances to the dosl:ng ~lor level 3 fair values. 

Particulars 

Balance as a1 1 April 
Fair value adjusted during the year 
Additlcm during the )'Sal' 

Balance as at 31 March 

C. Financial rtak management 

,, .... , 
31.03.2021 

nie Company has exposure to the lollowing risks arising from ftnanciallnstruments: 

credit risk (see point no. (ii) below) 

liquidity risk (see point no. (ii) below): and 

market risJ,; (see point no.- (I'() below! 

I. Risk managenwnt frllmeworil 

tIn Laths .... , 
31.03.2020 

The Company's board of directors has oYerall responsibility fiX the eslablishment aod oversight of the Company's risk 
management lramhoOrk. The Company's management Is responsible fiX developing and monitoflng the Company's 
risk management policies and procedures. 

The Comp8ny's risk cnanagement polldes are eslabllshed to Identify and onaly&e the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and conlrols and to monltiX risks and adherence to limits. Rlsll. management policies and 
systems are reviewed ~egularty to rafted change~ in mart.at conditions and the Company's activities. 

The Company's management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedure$, 
and reviews the adequacy Ot the risk manegoment framework In relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit 
committee Is assisted in Its ovetSight role by internal audit Internet audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews 
of risk management controls and procedures, the results or v.ilich are rapor1ed to the audit convnlttae. 
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II. Crwdlt risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fans to 
meet its conlraCtual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from OJStomeni. 

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. 

Tl'llde receivables 
The Company's c~ro to credit risk is lnnuenced mainly by the individual characteristics ol each customer. 
However, management also considers the factors that may Influence the credll risk of its customOf base, including the 
default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. 

The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer Is analysed Individually IOJ 
creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The 
Company's review Includes maltet check, industry feedback, past llnanclals and external ratings, if they are available, 
end In soma cases bank references. Sale limits are established for each customer end reviewed quarterly. Ally sales 
exceeding thoSe limits require approval from lhe Company's management. 

Aboul65% of the Company's customers have been transacting with the Company from many years, and no significant 
lmpiinnent kiSs has been recognized against these customer.~. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are 
reviewed according to their aedlt characteristk:s, lndudlng whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their 
geogrephi<: location, industry and existence of previous tlnandal'difficulties. 

The Company establishes an allowance for impalrmem that represents its expected cred~ losses in respect of trede 
and other receivables. The manaoement uses a simplified approach for the purpose of'~tion (}I expected credit 
ktss for trade recei•-ablel. · 

The carrying amount (net of lOss allowances) of trade receivables is 31st March, 2021 t 301.73 Lakhs and 31st March, 
2020 t 223.25 Lakhs.' ' 

A summary of the Company's exposure to credit fisk for trade roceivafllcs based on the ageing Is as folows 

As at 31.03.2021 
As at 31.03.2020 

less than 
6 Mon ... 

301.73 
223.25 

6-12 

""""" 
""""than 
12 Months 

tIn lakhs 

T""' 
301.73 
223.25 

During the year, the Company has- made no write-offs of trtlde receivables, it does not expect to receive futUre cash 
ftaws or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written otf. 

Reconciliation of loss allowance f!!OVision. Tt11de receivables 

Opening Balance 
Change In loss allowance 
Closing balance 

Ul. Uqukstty rtsk 

.... 
31.03.2021 

t lnlakhs .... 
31.03.2020 

liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter diffiCUtty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
ljabilltles that are settled by deUvering cash or another financial aSS4!t. Tho Company's approach to managing liquidity 
Is to ensure, as far as possible, that II will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both 
normal and stressed conditions, without Incurring unacceplable losses or risking dama·ge to the Company's repulalion. 
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The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are 
gross and tmdiSGOUnted, and include ~Ira~ interest payments: · 

As at 31 March 2021 

Financial auats 
Trade r"ecelvables (refer note no. 9) 
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note no. 10) 
Deposits .,.,;lh banks (including interest accrued lheteonj 
(refer nole no. 5) 
Bank balances ocrier than cash and cash equivalents 
(refer note no. 11) 
01~ finaneial assets (refer note no. 12) 
Security depo$lts (refer note no. 5) ·, ,, 
Flnanclal llabllldn ,.,._,.,., 

- Term loans from banks and fii'IMcial lnstltutlon 
(lnduding interest and CUtT1Iflt maturities ol ~ 
boiw..iio~gsl (Rsfer note no. 18 and 23) 
Bonowiugs {CIJI'Tllfl1) (Refer note no. 21) 
Trade payables'(Refer note Oo. 22) '• 
Other lnlerest IIOCtU8d btJI not due (Refer note no. 19 and 
231 
Employees liabilities (Refer note no. 23) . 
Acoued expenses (Refer note no. 23) 
Tolol 

~ 8131 Mllrd'l2020 

Flnanca.l uMb '· 
Trade recafo Net (refer note no. 9) 
Ca&h and cash equivalent~ (refer note no. 10) 
Deposits wilh banks (lndudlng lntetesl: ecaued lheteon) 
(refer note no. 5) · ! 

Bank balances OChot lhan cash and cesh equivalents 
(reler note no. 11) 
Other l'nandal auets (refer note no .. 12J 
Secu1ty deposits (refer note no. 5) 

FlnanclalllabliiU.. - .... 
" 

• Term loans from blinks and financial lnsUlutlon 
{indudlng Interest and current maturities of long-term 
bomlwio~gsl (Relet note no. 18 and 23) 
Bom7oW1gs (curT8rlt) (Refw note no. 21) 
Trade payables {Refer note no. 22), 
Other Interest aa:nHid but not due (Refer note no. 1 9 and 
23) . 

Employees UablllllltS {Refer note no. 23) 
Accrued expenses (Refer note no. 23) 

T"" 

301,73 
54.45 

145.01 

19.87 

52t.oe 

41.75 

103.58 
125.92 

69.84 
14.76 
34.24 ...... 

, ....... 
1 

22,25 
126.59 

~.07 

.... 
...... 

97.17 

91.11 
161.54 
76.60 

2<4.72 
26.15 

<477.21 . 

1-5 Veer 

1.19 

21.12 
:n.:st 

20.37 

3.81 

2.t.11 

t-5 veer 

29.31 

21.13 ...... 

62.69 

26.<45 

11.1<4 

l' In Ukhs 
Total 

301.73 
sus 

1.19 

145.01 

19.87 
21.12 

543.37 

62.12 

103.58 
125.92 

73.65 

14.76 
34.24 

414.27 

.......... 
Tooal 

223.25 
126.59 
29.31 

208.07 

8.68 
21.13 

817.03 

159.86 

91.11 
161.5<4 
103.05 

2<4.72 
26.15 

51SIS.o43 

The lnteresl paymenll on variable lnteresl ratelo:lM In the table above renect spot interest rates at the reporting date 
and !hose amounts may change as rr'laril;atlntarest rata. ch...~. H~. the Company doeSn't a1Cp8Ct slgnlflcant 
dllfarent ai'TIOI.rlt on ecc:ount o1 ch8ngaln market inlefflst rata changes. · · 
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0..14Aiwc ftnanc:lallnstru!IMintl 
The Company holds derfvaiiYe flnandal lnWumentJ such u foreign currency IOfWIIrd conlf1lcl.s to mitigate the risk of 
a.anges In exchange rate. on 1oro1gn cumncy expc»Ura. The counterparty lot lhese conncts Ia a bank. TheM 
dertYdYe ~ instruments ere qiiJn baMd on quoted prices lor similar assets and liabilities a, aeUve matf(cts or 
1npu1s !hat ere dlndtyor indlroc!ty OOse,vable In the n\alt(etplaca. 

.... at 31 March 2021 

Dowl¥atlwa flnancl.l tn.tnan.nb 
F~ oxc:hange forward oonncu (at forward rate) 
uso . 
EURO 
Toto\ 

~ at J I March 2020 

Deftvatlve nnsnclallnstrurnents 
Foreign exchange I~ contracts (at forward rate) 
uso 
EURO 
Tolal 

lv. Market r\&k 

Leu than 
I 

16.58 

16.58 

Less than 

1-5 Year 

1-5 Yoaf 

T""l 

16.58 

HI. 58 

~In Lakhs 

T ""'' 

Marllet rtsk Is !he rtsk that changes In market prices· such as foreign exchange rates. intetest rates and equity prices· 
win afled. lhe Company's income or the value of Its holdings ol llnandal inslrument:s. The objeaive of market ri&k 
management Is to manage and eoniJOI marloot risk e1q)()Sures within acceptable paramelers. ~ optimisiog the m..,_ 
Cu""'cyrbk 
The Company Is exposed 1o currency risll to the extentlhat~ttere' is a mismatch between the cutTOI'Iciet In whiCh sales 
and pun;:hases are denOminated. The currencies in IONch lhese transactions are primarily denominated are USO. GBP 
and Euro. The Company uses forward exchange conii'Bcts to hedge its currency risk. most with a m111turity of less lhan 
one year from the reporting date. 

Exposure to currency ·it.k 
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional emounls) as 
reportiJd to the managemem Is as follows: 

As at31 Mardl2021 Cu~"" Amount In ......... u"._ 
foreign rate{ln ~"' 

~" cutTencv absolute tl Lakhsl 

uso 16696 75.09 12.54 
GBP . .,. 92.49 3.15 

Advance 10 wppBenr; for eapllal goods EUR 2183 82.36 -t.80 
Net exposure In respect of recognised assets and UabiUtles 13.81 

,... • 31 March 2020 """""" """""" . ......... UMedged 

'"'""" rate ( In ~"' 
~" currency ebsolute tl Lakhsl 

uso 13000 75.09 9.76 
GBP 3000 92.49 2.77 

Ad'YIInc. eo &!IJI)hrl for capital goods EUR 5135 82.36 --4.23 
Net e~ In respec:t of recogniMd auets eod tlebWtles ..,. 
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S.nshlvtty anaty.ls 
A reasonably poulble str~ (-kenlng) of lhe INR. Eurn, USO and GBP against all other c:urreodes at year 
end would have alfocted lhe measurement of financial lostruments denomlrr.atod In a lofelgn curro~· and otfedod 
equity and profit ot loss by the amountt shown below. This analysis assumes that an other variables remain ccnstant 
and ignotes any lmpad of fotecast sates and purchases 

Currency Movement in 
I "'~ "'" " 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020 foreign Cuf'!'ency 
I Increase in I Decrease Increase in I DeQ'ease 

profit In proftt protlt In oroftt 
Euro 
uso 
GBP 

Interest rate risk 

5"4 movement 
5%movement 
5% movement 

009 
0.63 
0.16 

009 
-<>.63 
-0.16 

-0.21 
0.49 
0.14 

0.21 
-0.49 

'-0.14 

Interest rate risk Is the risk lhat the lair value or furure cash flows of a tln.ardal Instrument will fluctuate becaiJSO of 
changes in prevn~ing market in~est rates. The Company's -eXpOSUre 10 the risk. due to changes In lnteresl rates 
relates primarily 10 the Company's s.hon-term and long-term borrowings lOAih l'loa~ng Interest rates. The Company 
constantly monl\01'1 the credit marluns and revisit& Its financing sttategles 10 achl&\la an optimal maturity profile and 
financing cost 

The Company is no1 exposed 10 slgnifocant interest rate risk as atlha ~poctiVa reporting dates. 

lntarHt Rata Exeosura: 
Panicular$ 

Floating Rate BotToiW!gs 
Fi~ed Rata BorrovMgs 
Total Borrowings 

"'" 31.03.2o21 
164.29 

1.25 
165.54 

lntarut rata MnSitl'lltiH fot flo.tlnp rata bon"owlnqs"(lmp!ct of lncr .. sa In 1%!: 
Particular.~ Mat 

31.03.2021 
Floating Rata Borrowings -1.64 

-1.&4 
Note: If the rate Is decreased by 1% profit will increase by an equal amount. 

"'" 31.03.2020 
245.17 

4.77 
249.94 

tIn Lakhs 

"'" 31.03.2020 
-2.45 
·2.45 

Interest rata sensitivity hM beon 'calculated assuming the borrowings outsiBndlng at the repottlng date have been 
outslandlng lor the enUre reporting year. 

D. Capital Management 
The Company's objedtvea ....tlen managing capital are to: 
- aalaguard their ability 10 contlnue as a going concem. 110 that they can c:onllnue to provide relums lot lhareholdet'l 
and benefits lor other atakllholdani; and 

·maintain an optimal capilal strudure to reduce the CXlllt of capital. 

The Company'l policy Is 10 maintain a strong capilal base so as to maintain ioveator. cradltor and market confidence 
and to sustain the future dall'lllopmenl of the business. 

In order to maintain 01" adjust the capital structwa. the Company rTiliY adjull the amount of dMdends paid lo 
shareholders, ratum·capltalto 11\areholdars, iuua new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. consistent wilh othan In 
the industry. The Company monliOra capital using a gearing ratlo,l'otllch II calculated as under. 

"'" Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer nota no. 10) 
Nat dab! 

Total equity 
Nil debt to equity ratio 
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.... 
31.03.2021 

1115.54 
54.45 

111.09 

1283.39 
0.09 

tIn Lakhs 

"'" 31.03.2020 
249.95 
126.59 
123.36 

1138.05 
0.11 
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42. Employee benefits . 
A. Defined Contribution Schemes · 

The COmpany deposits a specifi~ percentage of specified employment benefit expenses to 
the State administered Provident Fund, Employee S~te Insurance (ESt) and Labour 
Welfare fund for the benefit of the employees. 

Amount recognised In the Statement of Profit and loss Is es follows: 

Particulars 

Provident fund paid to the authorities 
(Net of Government grant amounting to t 0.49 Lakhs 
(previous reporting year t 2.72 Lakhs) 
Employee state Insurance paid to the aulhoritles 
Contribution to other funds (Labour welfare fund) 
Total 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

8.02 

2.49 
0.39 

10.90 

tlnlakhs 
Fa< the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

4.62 

2.26 
0.29 
7.11 

The expenses Incurred on account of the above defined contribution schemes have been 
Included In note no. 32 ·employee benefits eXpense· under the head ""Contribution to 
provident and other funds". · ' 

B. Defined Benoflt Schemes 

Gratuity. 
The Company operates a gratuity plan administered through Life Insurance Corporation of 
India (LIC) under Its New Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Plan. Every empklyee Is 
entitled to a benefit eQuivalent to fifleery days salarY last drawn for ea.ch completed year of 
service i:1 nne. with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of 
separation from the Company or retirement, whichever ls.e8r1ier. The benefits vest after fNe 
years of contJnuous·servlce. The Company pays oontribution to Life Insurance Corporation 
of India to fund Its plan. 

The following tables set out the dlsdosures In respect of the gratuitY plan es required under 
lndAS-19. 

I. Changes In the preSent value .or the obligations: 

PartJculara 

~ ·-
Present value of the ob!igatlon·at the beginning of the 
year 
lntarast cost 
Current servloo coat 
Past service cost 
Bonellts peld (It eny) 
Actuartal. (galn)lloss 

·· · · Present value of the obligation at the end or the yoar 
~Non CUrrent · 
~Current 

98 

t'lnlakha 
For the For the 

year ended .-year ended 
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

22.71 20.27 

1.25 1.22 
3.88 3.05 

.0.38 .0.95 
2.63 .0.88 

30.11 22.71 
23.72 . 17.40 

6.39 5.31 
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II. Changes in the fair value of the planned assets: 

Particulars 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Expected retum on plan assets . 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 

iii. Amount recognised in th_e Balance Sheet: 

Particulars 

Present value of the obligation at the end of the year 
Fair value of plan assets~~ the end of the year 
Net liability/ (asse.t) recogriised in the Balance· Sheet 
and related analysis 
Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit) · 

lv. Actuarial gain/ (loss) o~ planned assets: 

Particulars · 

Actual return on plan assets 
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on assets 

v. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit' and Loss: 

Particulars 

Interest cost 
Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Expected return on· plan asset 
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss 

99 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

20.87 
1.15 
1.87 

-0.36 
0.14 

23.67 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

30.11 
23.67 

6.44 

-6.44 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

1.29 
1.15 
0.14 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

1.25 
3.88 

-1.15 
3.98 

'flnlakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

16.63 
1.16 
4.00 

-0.95 
0.03 

20.87 

'{Jnlakhs 
For the 

year ended 
. 31.03.2020 

22.71 
20.87 

1.84 

-1.84 

't'lnlakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

1.20 
1.16 
0.04 

tlnlakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

1.22 
3.05 

-1.16 
3.11 
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vi. ·Other Comprehensive Income recognised: 

Particulars 

Actuarial (gain )I loss· obligation 
Actuarial (gain )floss- plan assets 
Total Actuarial (gainV loss 

vH. Investment details of the fund: 

Particulars 

life Insurance Corporation of India 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

2.63 
-0.14 
2.50 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

23.67 

viii. Expected contribution during the next annual reporting year: 

~lnlakhs 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020 

-0.88 
-0.04 
-0.92 

tlnlakhs 
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020 

,20.87 

~lnlakhs 

Particulars For the For the 
yearended yearended 

•''-;:-...,--,---,----;--.,-,:--,-----,-..,--.,.----,------"3"'1."'03"'.2"'0'=2.;,1 .,.----"3"'1.,03"'.2"'07207=-
Best estimate of contribution during the next year 7.21 6.25 

lx. Prtndpal actuarial assumptiOn at the Balance Sheet date: 

Partirulars 

Discount rate (per annu!ll) 
Salary growth rate (per annum) 
Mortality 

Withdrawal rate (per ann·um) 
Expected average remaining working lives of 
employees {years) 
Method Used 

100 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

5.50% 
7.00% 

IALM 
2012·14 
30.00% 

21.10 

Projected Unit 
Credit 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020 

6.00% 
7.00% 

IALM 
2012-14 
30.00% 

21.50 

Projected Unit 
Credit 
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x. Sensitivity Analysis: 
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation 
are disco_unt rate and expected salary increase rat~. Effect of change in mortality ~te is 
negligible. The sensitivity analysis is presen.ted below·may not be representative of the 
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it i:» unlikely that the change in 
assumptiOn would occur .in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may 
be correlated. The results of sensitivity ana'iysis are given below: · 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation (base) 
Discount Rate 
1.00% Increase 
1.00% decrease 
Sal~ry _Growth Rate 
1.00% Increase 
1.00% decrease 
Withdrawal Rate 
1.00% Increase 
1.00% decrease 

i. 

101 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

30.11 

-0.80 
0.84 

0.82 
. -0.80 

-0.15 
0.15 

~lnlakhs 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020 

22.71 

-0.62 
0.67 

0.66 
-0.62 

-0.14 
0.15 
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43. R.tateod parUn dtac:tosurn 
As per tnd AS • 24 "Related Party Disclosures", the Company's related parUes and transadlons with them 
in the ordinary course of business are disclosed below: 

a. Nemes of the related partln and relationship betWeen the parties: 

b. R1lated party tr.nnctlons: 

Nature of ~ransactlons 

I Remuneration toKe lbna 
Mr. Arru Gu ta 
Mrs. Sa Kansal 
Mr. Naveen Kansal. 
Mr. Sh&rad Goel 
Mrs. Nikita Si Ia 
Total 

Mrs. Sapna Kansal, Whole-:lil)'l8 Director 
Mf. Mi.lhlesh Kumar Gul)ta, Chairman and Non-E~tecutlve 
Independent Director 
Mr. Sode$h Kumar Garg, Non-Executive Independent DirectlY 
Mr. Sandeep sun. Non-Executivo trw1~-.:::..":: ::nrectci 
Mr. NikhW r;:;.q;;i.fcn.£xeO.Jtlvo Director 

- Ml". Navocn Kansal, Chief E)(8CUtive Officer 
Mt". Sharad Goet, Chief Financial Officer 
Mnl. Nikita Slogla; Company sflctetary 

I Personnel KMP 

: For the year 
endod 

31.03.2021 
Key 
managerial 
pononnol 
KMP 

15.00 
15.00 
15.00 
12.00 

1.80 ..... 

tIn lakhs 
For the year 

""""' 31.03.2020 
Key 
managerial 
penoonel 
KMP 

15.00 
15.00 
15.00 
12.00 

1.97 
sa.t7 

c. ComJMn .. tlon of Key Nanagerb.l Personnel of the Comf)'lny: • 

Notes: 
' Expenses towards gratuity prO...woos are determined actuariatly on an oYerall Company baM at !he end 
oleach year and,l!CCOI'Oingly, have not been consklerecl in lhe above information. 

Terms and conditions of trana.ctlon• with Relllted Parties: 
The tranuctions with releted parties are made in the normal COUiliO of business and on lerms equivalenl 
1o those lhol prevail in arm's length transactions. The above transactions are as pel" lhe epproval of the 
Audit Commltlee. 
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44. On account of COVID-19 pandemic, the Government of India had imposed a complete nation-wide 
lockdown on 24th March, 2020 leading to temporarily shut down of Company's manufacturing facilities and 
operations for some period during the first quarter of financial year 2020..21. Since then the Government of 
India progressively relaxed tOCkdown conditions and has allowed industry to resume its operations. Hence, 
to that extent, f~gures for the' year ended 31st March, 2021 are not comparable with corresponding year 
ended 31st March, 2020. The Company has made assessment of its liquidity position for the rurrent year 
and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, 
inventories and trade receivables. The Company has considered internal and external sources of 
information for making said assessment. On the basis of said assessment, the Company expects to 
recover the canylng amount of these assets and'no material adjustments is required In the financial 
statements. Given the uncertainties associated with nature, condition and duration of COVI0-19, the 
Company will closely monitor:any material changes arising out of the future economic conditions and its 
impact on the business of the Company. 

45. Previous reporting year figures in the financial statements, indudin9 the notes thereto, have been 
reclassified wherever required to confinn to the current reporting year presentation/classification. 

In tenns of our report on even date anactied 

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 000711 N 

Place: Chandlgalh 
Date: 29.06.2021 

(RUCHIR SINGLA) 
.Pannei 

Membcnh!P. No. 51934 7 
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For and on behalf o( the Board of Directors of 
· .HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

(ANURAG GUPTM 
Manailing Dl<ecto< 
OIN~192888 

(SHARAD GDEL) 
CNef Flnandaf Ol'ficer 

(NIKHIL GOEL) 
Director 

OIN-017.(1.(46 

(NIKITA SINGlA) 
Company Sec:retary 

(NAVEEN KANSAL) 
Chief Executive Officer 
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